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NOTICE OF THE 105"ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice Is hareby gven that the 105™Annuml Genuvral Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on
Friday, the 13" day of September, 2024 at 11.30 A.M. indian Standard Time {iST) at the Registened Office of the Campany at
Thirumbadi Estate, Mukkam Posl. Kozhikode Distict —673602, Karala to transact the [ollowing businesses.:

AGENDA
ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1, To receive, consider and adopt e audied fimancial statements including Batance Sheet as at 317 March, 2034, the
Statement of Profit and |.ossand Cash Flow Statement for the year ended as on that date and the Report of the Directors
ang Auditoes thereon.

2. Toappoint a Diractor inthe place of Smit. Shashi Bangur (DIN: 06053300) who retires by rotstion and being eligible, ofters
herself for re-appaintment.

3. To appoint a Ditector In the place of Shrt, Vitendran Bangur {DIN: 00237043) who retires by rotation and teing eligibie,
offers himsel! tor re-zppaintment

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4, Toconsider and if thought fit, with or without modification(s), 1o pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all ather applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-anactment theraot, tor the
time being in force) Mr P. Mohan Kumar, Cost Accountant [Membership No. 18692) who was appointed as Cost Augitor by
the Board of Directors of the Company. to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company fof the inancial year ending
31" March 2025 on a remunamtion of Ra. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) plus taxes as applicabla and out of pockst
cxpenses for actual ravelting and other expenses incurred by him Tor the purpase of audit be and are horéby ratificd and
confirmiag.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the bourd of directors of the company be and is heroby authansed to'de all such acts, and 1ake
all such steps s may b necessary, proper of expedient 1o glve affect tn this resolution,

5. Toconsider an 11 thought fit, with or without morificationis), 1o pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLYED THAT in accordince with the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 161 Schadule 1Y snd othor applicable
provisions, i any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoaintment and Qualification of directors] Rules 2014
(Inciuvdmg any statutory madification(s) or re-enactmnent thereol for the tima baing in force), and the Articles of Associaton
af the Compary, Shii. Krishna Kumbe Lobia (DIN: 00650802}, who wus appointed as on Additiunul Directur of the Company
in the capacity of Independent Director by the Board of directors with effect rom 06" Augiist 2024 and who holds office upto
the date of this Anpual General Meeting and who had submitted a declaration that he meets the critena for independenca
uncar Section 149(6) of the Act. and Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of directors) Rules 2014 and
wha |s eligible far appointment and In respect of whom the Company has recelved a natice Ih wrlting fram a Member
stenilying his Intention to propote Shel. Krishna Kumar Lohia as a candidate for the off|ce of Birector of the Company, be and
is hereby appointad as an |ndependent Director of the Company to hold office tor a term of five {5) consecutive years with
effect from 08" August, 2024, and s nol liable o cetire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the boand of directors of the company be and is Hemby autharised to do 2ll such acts, and take
all such steps as may be necessary, propet of expedient to glve ellec) e this resolution,

6. Teconsider and i thought NIk, with or witheut modification(s), to pass the following resolution as 2n Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 148, 150, 152, 161 Schedule IV and other applicable
pravisions, i any, of the Companlss Act, 2013 ahd the Companias [Appaintment and Qualitication of directors) Rules 2014
{ tntlhﬂmu any statutory modification(s) or re-anactment thereof lor the fime baing in larcel, and the Aricles of Association
of the Company, Shri, Sushil Kumar Dhandhania (DIN: 00181152}, who was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company In the capacity of independent Director by the Board of directorswith effect from 08" August, 20624 and who holds
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office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who had submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for
indapandence under Section 145H6) of the Act, and Rule G of the Companles (Appolntment and Qualiticatian of directors)
Aules 2014 and who is eligible for appomment and in respect of whom the Company has received 3 rotica inwriting from a
Member signifying his inteation 1o propose Shil. Sushil Kumar Dhandhama as a candidate for 1he office of Duector of the
Company, be and Is hereby appointed as an indepandent Director of the Company to hold office for a teem of Mve (5)
conssouthve years with affect frarm 06% August, 2024, and is not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the boart of directors of the company be and I8 héreby suthprised to do all such acts, and take
all such-steps as may be necessary, propar of expediont to give elfect to this resolution.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEMNO. 4

The Baard of Directors of the Company appainted My, P, Mohal Bumar, Cost Accountant (Membership No, 186892 a5 Cast
Auditor of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost recards of the Company for the financial year ending 31* March
2026 on a remunezation of Rs. 60,000/ (Hupees Soay Thousand onty) along with payment of taxes as applicabie and out of
pockat expansas for actual travelling and other expenses incurred by him during the course of the budit, payable to him.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Audit and Autiftors)
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor of the Company approved by the board of directors and has lo be
ratified by the Members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

.ﬁ::cardlngif. the cansent of the members ks being squght for the ratification of the remuneration to be pald to the Cost
Auditor of the Company for the financial year ending 31* March 2025.

The board recommenids the ordinary resolution et oul in ltem Nod of the notice for the approval of the Members of the
Company.

Nane of the Directors and Key Manggerial Personngl of the Company and their relatives are concamed o Interested,
financially or atherwise, in the resolution as set cut under ftem No.4 of the notice.

ITEMND.5

In terms of Secticn 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, (ke Board of Directors of thie Company had appointad Shii, Knshng
Eumar Loty {DIN: 00680802), a5 an Addilonal Director in the cagacity of Non-Executive Independent Director an the Board
of Director of the Campany of their meeating hietd on 06™ August 2024 with effect from the said date.

Shii. Kiishita Kumar Lohia holgs office up to the doate of this Annual Genedal Meeting puisuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has recaived a Notice in writing fram a Member under Section 160 of the Act, proposing
his candigatume for the office of Independent Director of the Company.

Shiri. Krishna Kumar Lohiza is not disguaiified from being appointed as a Director In termt of Section 164 of the Act and & not
debamed from holding the office of Director by any ather suthority. He has given his consent to act as a Director along with
the declaration to the effeat that he mests the criteria of Indapendence as prescrbed under the Act and thet his name is
Included in the dgatabank of Independent Directors as required under Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Ropointmaiht ahd
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

I thiz opinion of the Board, Shirl. Krishng Kumar Lohia fulfils the conditions:as specified undar the Act read with the Rules
made [heraunder for his appointment as an Independent Disector of the Company and is also independent of the
Management.

The Board of Directors have reviewed and evaluated the balance of skills, knowledge and axperience on the Board and have
idantified the rolé and capabilities required of an Independent Director and have considerad that the appointment of Shri.
keishna Kumar Lohia with his experience and expertise will be of iImmensa value addition to the Company.
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The oiscliosures as required under Secremartal Standand on General Mestings (535:2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretanes of ndia (ICS)) are furnished and Tom a pertol tis Notics,

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Resolution as set out in ltem No. & of the Notice for appointment of Shri. Krishina
Kumar Lohia a5 an Independatt Director for a termi aof five |5) consecutive vears, tor approval by the Membiers of the
Cempany,

Except Shrl. ¥rishna Kumar Lohia belng the agpolntee director, none of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives are concemed of interested, financially or gthenvise, in the Resolution as set out In tem
No. 5 af the Notice.

ITEMNO.8&

In terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directars of the Company had appeinted Shii. Sushil
Kumar Dhandhonia (DIN; 001811591, a5 an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent Director on The
Baarg of Directins of the ﬂﬂ-l'!!i:lﬂﬁ‘; attheir meating held an DBE™ Aupust 2024 with effect from tho said daite.

Shn. Susnll Kumat Dhandhania holds office up to tha date af this Annual Ganeral Meeting pursuant 1o Sectioh 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company hps rec E_h'nd o Notice in writldg from a Membar under Section 160 of the Act, proposing
his candidature for the office of Independent Director of the Company,

Shiri. Sush|l Kumar Dhandhania Is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in teims of Section 164 of the Act and
Is not debamed from haldimg the office of Director by amy other authority. He has given his consent to act as a Director along
with the declaration to the effect hat he mests the criteria of Indepandence as prescribed under the Actand that his name
Is Included In the datapank of Independent Diractors ps roguired wrider Ruld B(3) of the Componies (Appointmant and
Qualification of Directors) Hules, 2014.

In the Gpinion of the Board, Stil. Sushil Kumps Dhandhania fullils the conditions as specilied under the Act read with the
Rules made thereunder for bis appaintment as an Independent Directod of the Compapny and s also independent of the
Management

The Board of Directors have reviewed and ovaluated the halance of sxills, knowledie and expedance on the Board and have
identified the role and capablUties required of an indepandent Director and have censigarad that the appointment of Shn,
Sushil Kumar Dhandhania with his expetience and expertise will be of immense value addition to the Campany,

fhe disclosures as requirsd under Sscretarial Standard on General Meefings (55-2) Issued by the Institute of Company
Secrelaries of India (ICS1) are turnished and form a part of this Notlce.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Resolution as set out in lem No. 6 of the Notice for appaintment of Shrl. Krishna
Kumar Lohia as an Indepandant Director for a term of tive (5) consecutive years. tor approval by the Members of the
Company,

Except Shn. Sushil Kumar Bhandhania bemg the appointae direcior, none of the Direciors and the Key Managenal Personnz|
al thie Compiony and thislt relatives ane concaimed or interested, financlaily o otheiwise, In the Resolution bs sst out In ltem
No. 6 of the Noljce,

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Maeting {the “mesting") Is entitled to appelint a proxy to
attent and vote an a poll instead of himself/hersalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company,

The instrumeant appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registared office of the company not less
than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for the Annual General Meeting is
enclosed.
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A person can act as a proxy an behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten parcent of the
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not
acl as a proxy tor any other person or shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives 1o attend the Mesting are r2questad to send to
the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorkzing thelr representatlve to attend and vate on thelr bahall at
the Meeting.

3. Members / Proxiesshauld bring the antendance slips duly filled and signed for anending the meeting.

4, The Company has entered Into agreements with Natlonal Securities Depositary Limited {*NSDL") and Central Depbsitory
Services (India) Limited ("CDSL"). The Depository System envisages the elimination of several prodlems involvad in the
scrp-hased system such as bad delivaries, fraudulant transfers, 1ake certificatas, thefts In postal transit, delay in transtars.
mutiliation of share cortificates etc. Simultansolsly, Deponsitbry System otlers several advantapges like sxemptioh from
stamp duty, elimination of concepl ol market lof, elmination ol bad d&lrﬁ.rarleﬁ. reduction in transaction cosls, improved
liquidity, etoc. Members, therefore, now have the opfion of holdings and dealing in the shares of the company in elecironic
form through NSOL or CDSL. Memibeis are encouraged Lo convert their holding to electronic mode.

5. Pursuant to Bule 94 of the Companies (Prospectus and Alloimen! of Securities) Bules, 2014, the application far transter
of shares held in physical form will not be processed except in the case of fransmission / ransposition with effact from 2=
October 2018. Accordingly, members who intend to transier their shares shall get stich shares dematerialised before
trangfer. The Company has entered Into agreements with Natlonal Securities Depository Limited {NSDL) & Central
Depository Semvicos (India) Limited [CDSL) ond shares of the Company are eligiote for demoatenolisstion under 1ISIN:
INE344H01019, Accordingly, the Company the Registiar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) shall not be able to entertain any
request fof transfer of shares in physical form

6, Change of Address: Mombers ame requested 10 notify any change of address and bank details to their Depositony
Participants inl respect of their holdings in electronic form and in respect of shares held in physical form, to the Secratarial
Department at the registered office of the Company or lo M/s, Link Intime India Private Limited, “Surya®, 35, May Flower
Avenue, Behind Septhil Magar, Sowripalayam, Coimbatore - 641028, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ol the
Company.

7. Non-Resident Indlan ("NRI") Members are requested to infarm the Company or |ts RTA or to the cancemed Depository
Participants, as the case may be, Immediately:

2. the change in the residential status on return to [ndia for permanent settlement or
b. the particulars of the NRE/NRO Account with a Bank in india, if not furnished eaitier.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Saction 72 of the Companies Acl, 2013, members may file nomination forms in respect of
their physical shareholdings. Any member willing te avall this facility may submit to the company’s Reglstrar & Share
Transter Agent in the prescribed statutory form. Should any assistanca be desired, membars should get in touch with the
company's reglstrar and shisre transfer agant.

9, Members are requested to forward thelr communications In cannection with shares held by them directly to the Registrar
and Share Transtar Agant of the Company M. Link Intime Indis Private Limited, "Surya™, 35, Mayliowsr Avenue, Behind
Senthil Nagar, Sownipalayam Road, Colmbatore -841028 by quoting the Folio No of the Client 1D No with DP 1D No.

10, Incase of joint holders, the Mambér whoze narne apiears as the first holde!in the grder of nimes as per the Reglster of
Members of the Company will be entitled fo vote at the AGM,
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11. Members dosirous af receiving eny information on the gccounts or operations of the Company nre reguestad 1o forwardd
his / her querles to the Company at least seven warking days prior to the meeting, so that the required Information can be
made available at the mesting. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

12. Members holding shares in physical torm in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested 1o s=nd to
the Company of Registrar and Share Transter Agent, the defalls of such folios together with the share certificates for
consolidating ther halding in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be retumed to such members after making
requlsite changes thareon.

13, Members holding shares in electionic form are roquested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with
whom they are malntaining their demat accounts, Members holding sharas in Physical form can submit thelr PAN to the
Compay of 10 M/s. Link intime nclia Private Limited, ar “Surya™, 35, May Flower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar,
Sowripalayam, Coimbatore - 841028, the Registrar and Shiare Transler Agent of the Company.

14. Members are requested Lo note that the venue of the 1057 Annual Genaeral Meating Is sitUated at "Thirumbad) Estate,
Mukkam Post, Kazhikode District - 673602, Kerala" and the route map containing the complete particulars of the venupe is
printed 1o this Notice,

15 Members who wish to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, ane requested to correspond with the Company /
Registrar & Share Transfar Agent of the Company. Members are reguesied 1o note that pursuant 1o Section 124 of the
Companies Act, 2013 dvidends not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend
Account, will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF®) astablished by the Central Government
under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, The details of unpaid/ unclaimed dwdend can be viewed on the Company's
wibglte Geaw iiktrc com. As per thie provisions ol Rule 6 of the Invesitl Educalion dnd Protectiof Fynd Authanty
{Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016, the Campany will be transferring the share(s) on which the baneficial
pwnas has not encashed any dividend during the last seven years to the I[EPF demat account as identified by the [EPF
Authority, Detalls of shareholders whose shares are lable to be trarisferred 1o IEPF are avallable at the company website:
Wi kkdrc.coin. The shareholders whose unclaimed dividend /share has been transferred to the ‘Investor Education and
Pratection Fund®, may claim the same trom IEFF autharity by fiting Form 1EPF-5 along with requisite documents. Shil, MK
Pawvari, Whnole-time Director & CEQ of the Company 1s the Nodal Officer of the Company for the purpose of verification of
such claims,

16. Compulsory transfer of Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority:

Pursuant fo the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act and Rule 6 of the nvestor Education and Protaction Fund Autharity
[Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, ["the 1EPF Rules”) and amendments thereto, the Company has
transferred the shares in respect of Members who have not clalmed/encashad divigend far the [ast seven consecutive years
to the Demat Account of the JEPF Authority. Details of the Members whose shares have been transferred to the Demat
account of the IEPF Authority are available at the Company's website-at www. lictre.com.

17. Membars may note that M/s. Dhandhania & Associates., [Firrn Registration No. 316052E) Cnartered Accountants,
Kolkata, the Statutory Auditors of the Company were appainted by the shareholders at their 104 Annual General Meating
{AGM) held on 23" August 2023, 1o hold office for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of AGM to be held In the year 2028,
Hencs, no resotution 1S beng propesad tor appointmant of Statutory Auditors at this 1067 Annual General Meating. The
Board of Diractors at their Meating held on 67 June, 2024 has fieed an amount of BS, 2,60,000/- (Rupees Two Lacs Sty
Thousand only) (exclusive of applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred In connection with the
Statutory Audit) as remunermtion payable 1o Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2023-24.

18. Bnef resume, getails of shareholding and Directors’ inter-se mlationship of Drectors seeking re-appointment in terms
as ragjuired under Secretarial Standards 2, are provided as Annexlire to this Notice.

&
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Additional Information on Directors recommended for re-appointment as required under Secretarial

Standards - 2 (SS5-2) issued by IC51.
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Additional infermation on Directors recommended forappointment as required under Secretarial Standards -

2(55-2) issued by ICSI.
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EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have ploasura in presenting the 105th Annual Report of the Company togsther with audited financial
staterments for thae year ended 319t March, 2024,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The symmary of the financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 15 a5 Tollows.
For the year For the year
ended ended
EAGHiay 317 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
- {Rs. In Lacs) (RS In Lacs)
Revenla from Dperations 10,057.29 7.004.09
Other Income 121.35 123,68
Total Income 10,178.84 7.127.66
Opsrating Expenditire (exciuding Depreciation) 10,063.31 7.112.32
Profit I {Loss) befare Depreciation and Taxes 115.33 1534
Less: Depreciatian and Amortization Expense 18290 18524
Profit / (Loss) befare Taxes (67.57) [148.90)
Less: Defened Tox [9.21) (26.37)
Profit / {Loss) after Taxation {58.36) {123.53)
Add: Balance Brought forward fram previous year 1,269,51 1,395.27
Profit Available for Appropriation 1,211.15 1,271.72
Appropriations:
o} Prior period Tax Adjustment . (2.23)
Balance Carried 1o the Balance Shoet ' 1,211.15 1,269.51

2023/ 2024 - A REVIEW
OPERATIONS

Rubber

Your Company's Rubbart Crap hamnestad for ths year under review wils 4,38 B75 Kgs. as against 3,50,618 Kgs ol tast yeas
Last year crop Was atlversaly sffected due to Indetinite strike called by the Tiadie unlon which Easted 87 days.
The Crop under review has been lower compared 1o estimate In view of unfavourabile weather conditions.

The Company had during the year processed bought rubber 30,62,106 kgs. In comparison to 19,71,947 Kgs of last year,
which Includes processing at M/s. Malabar Latax (P) Lid, 4,849,025 kgs during the year In comparison to 7,75,081 Kgs of last

YRE.
Tea and Colfee

The Total Indian production for the yaar 2023-24 stands af 1382.03 mrilllon kgs. 25 againat 1373.37 million kgs of 1a%t year.
The South Indian Production remained 2t 244,48 millian Kgs as against 225 65 milllan kgs of last y=ar,

You Company's overall 1ea production under review remaned a1 21,698,884 Kgs. as against 16.21.733 Kgs. of tast year
including bought leal of 11,598,115 lgts. [Last yelr Bough! leal produttion wok 8,563,554 kgs,) Our ownrl praductivn stahds
higher at 10,10,768 Kgs. a5 agsinst 9,538,179 ks, of last yaar,

The average sales realisation of South India during the year stands at Rs 109.40 per kg as against Rs. 115.22 per kg of last
year Your Company averaie sales realisation remained a1 Ry 131,08 per ke as apainst As. 13740 pier kg of a5t year

The Gotfes crop during the year under review declined ot 16.10 tonhes as ogainst 25,90 tonnes of [ast year. The Robusta Crop
during the year under review adversely affected due tb uniavourable weather congitions.
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Development

The Company has incurted s 24649 Lalkhs durlng the year unides revisw an accourt of capltal axpenditures as against
Rs, 471,55 Lakhs of last yiar,

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There was no change in the nature of business of the Compary during the inanclal year ended 31 March, 2024

ACREAGE STATEMENT
Acreape Statement s given in Annexuare-1,
DIVIDEND

Due 1o Losses incurred by the Companty dunng the yedr under review, the Directoss have not recommended any dividend for
the yearended 31" March 2024,

TRANSFER YO RESERVES

The Company has not ransferred any amount to |15 resenves dunngive yvear under review. Mowever, the current year Loss of
Rs. 58.36 Lokhs has boen ad|ustod with the Sgeplys and the Bglonoe of As. 1,211,156 Lakhs has been shown as in the Profit &
Loss undes the hessd “Reserves and Sumplus™ in the Balpnce Shaed,

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
In terms of Section 124 & 135 of tha Comparies-Acl, 20032 there is no amount due 1o be rarstered duning 1he yvear 1o the
imestor Education and Protectian Fund establ|shed by the Central Govermmenn.

SHARE CAPITAL

The issued, sunscnbed and paid-up share capital of the Company a5 a1 31022024 stood &1 RS 41.84.660/- divides Into
4,185,466 equity shares of Rs.10/- each. During the year undar review thi Company hasnol maoe sy fresh issus of shares.

WEBLINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Retum of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 as requited under r.er.:i_m 8203} of the Sompanies Act,
2013 s avallable on the website of the Company-and can be accaessad an the Company’s wabsita at the Unk wrw kkts.com

BOARD / COMMITTEE MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

During the year under review, Four (4) Meetings of the Board of Directars, and Three |3) Meelings of the Stakeholders
Redationship Commitiee were held,

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Girectors have devisad proper system to ensure compliznce with the provisions of all appiicable Secretarial Standards
and that such systams are adequate and operdling effectively. The Company has duly corpplied with the Secretarial
Stancards lesued by the Instiiute of Company Secretanes of India an meeting of the Board of Directors (S5-1) and General
Meating [35-2].

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the reguirement undar Section 1343)(c) of the Companies Act, 2073, with respect to Directors” Responsitility
Statemant, Itis hereby confirmead that;

{3} In the prepatation of the annual pccounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no
muaterisl departuras from thoses standards;

(b} the directors had selacted such accounting policias and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as 10 give a true and Talr view of the stale of olfairs of 1he company 3t the end of The
financial year and of the Loss ol the company 1o ths pedoc;

ic) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for sateguarding the assets of the company and tor preventing and detecting fraud and ather
Irregularities!

i




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concarn hasis;
() the diredtors have tald down intemal financial controls to be tollowed by the Company ind that such intesnal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively and

(f) the clirectors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectvely.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.

There have bean no frauds reportad by the auditors pursuant o Section 143112} of the Companies Act, 2013
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of Section 149 pertaning to the appointment of Indepandent Directors does not apply to the Company for the
financial year 2023-24,

However, since the turnover ol the Company has exceaded Rs, 100 Crores guring the financlyl year 20023-24, the Company is
required to appoint & minimum of two Independent Directors in the financial year 2024-25, Accordingly, the Board of
Directors of the Company have appainted Shni. Knshna kumar Lohia (DiN: 00620802) & Shri. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania (DIN:
00181158) as Additlonal Directors on the Board of the Company wel. 067 Audist 2024 =nd bave recommentzd thed
appointment as Indepandent Directors in the torthcoming Annual General Meating, In the opinion of the Board, Shii. Krishna
Kumar Lohia & Shri. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania fulfil the canditions as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
made thersunder with ragard to integnty, expertise and sxpenance (including the proficiency] for their appolntment as
Independent Directors subject to approval of the shareholdess In the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Tha Company has also received declarations from the agpointee direciors that they tulfill the criteris of Independence as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Furthier, the appointes independent Directors have also compliad with the requirsments of the provisions in redalion o
registration on the Databank of Indepéndent Directors as stated in the Companies {Creation and Maintanance of databank of
Independent Directors) Rules, 2018 and the Companies [Appaintmant and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as

amended from time to time. The Board recommends their appointment as Independent Directors in the forthcoming Annuat
General Meeting.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE
(INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR

Thie Coimpany is not required to appoint Independerit Directors and hence disclosure regarding integrity, expertise and
expenance (including the proficiency) does not anse for the tinancial year 2023-24,

Thie Board has appointed two Independent Directors with etfect from 06" August 2024 and relevant disclosures are made
eleawhara N the fepor.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND OTHER MATTERS
PROVIDED UNDER SECTION 178(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

The provision of Section 178{1) relating to constitution of Momination and Remuneration Committee are not applicable to
the Company for the finahcial year 2023-24 and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to appointment of
Directors, payment of Managerial Remuneration, Director's qualifications, positwe attributes, Independence of Directors
and other related matters as provided Under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 tor the financial year 2023-24,

However, since the turnover of the Company has exceeded Rs. 100 Crares during the year 2023-24, the Board of Directors of
the Company are In the process of constituting the Nomination and Remuneration Committee pursuant 1o the provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder.
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AUDITORS" REPORT & SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

There were no qualifieations, resarvations, adverse remarks or disclalmars made by the M. Dhandhaniz & Assorizies,
Statutory Auditors. The provislons relating to submission of Searetarial Audit Bepont is not applicable to the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013

The Company is maintaining the cost reconds as prescribed by Centeasl Goviermment undes section 148(1) of the Companjes
Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Thie ' Company has modo Investments dudng the year under review and cotnplied with the provisions of Soctlan 126 of the
Companies Act, 2013, The detalls of investmeants made by the Cempany are given i) the Notes to the Finanelal Stataments
However, the Company has nat provided any loans or glven guaraniees attracting the provision of Sectlon 186 of the
Companles Act, 2013 duting the year under review,

PARTICULARS OF GONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions entered [no with relpted parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2023-24
wade it the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis Since there are no transadtions which are not on arm's
length basis and materal in pature the requitement of disgiosure of such related panty transactions In Form ADC -2 does not
anse,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial pesition of the Company which has ogourred
between tne financial year snded 317 March 2024 and thedate of the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORFPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Infarmation pertaining to conservation of energy, tochnology absotption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo as
required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companias Act, 2013 read with Fule 8(3) of the Companies (Accpunts] Rules, 2014
Is attached herewith os Annexure-l ta this repon

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Company has a structurad nsk management policy. The Risk management process is designed to sateguard the
onganization from various risks through adeguate and Umely achions. I is designed to identity the elements of risk and to
anticipata, avaluate and mitigata risks which may threaten the edstance of the Compaty in order 1o minimize its impact on
the business. The same (s being perodically rewewed,

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company was noi reguired to constitute an’ Audit Commitiee of the Board as the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rute 6 of the Companies [Mestings ol the Board and ks Powers) Rules, 2014 are hot
apollcable to the Compaby.

However, since the turmover of the Comparry has excecded Rs, 100 Cmres durng the year 2023-24, the Board of Directors of
tha Company are in the process of constituting the Audit Committes pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rulesmade thereundet.

The Company is not required to establish a vigl mechanism sinoe it does not satisty the conditions prescnbed undear Sectjion
177(8] of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rutes, 2014 and
hence, disclosure regarding the detalls ol such mechanism in his report s not applicabla,

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELGPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON (TS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INITIATIVES

The Coripany has not davelopad and Implementsd goy Corporate Social Respongititity Initigtives as the said pedvisions are
not applicable.
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ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD ON ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND OF THE INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Compgany has not done any avaluation ol the Board or of the Individual Directors as the sald provislons are not
applicable,

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shin. Knshna Kumar Lohia (DiN: 00830802) & Shi. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania (DIN: 00181158), Directors of tha Company
had resigned from the directorship w.e.1. 05" August, 2024, Subsequently, Shrl, Krishna Kumar Lohia [DIN: 00680802) & Shii.
Sushil Kumar Dhandhania (DIN: 00181158} were appointed as an Additional Non-Executive and Independent Directors of the
Company for a pericd of 5 years w.e.f. 06" August 2024 and they hold office upto the date of this Annual General Mesting.
Accordingly, necessary resolutions proposing the appointment of Shri. Knshna Kumar Lohia & Shri. Sushil Kumar
Dhandhania as Indepdndant Directirs of the Compaliy has bien Includad I the Apanda of the Motice convaning the A nyal
General Meeting for the approval of the members,

Furtner, Smt. Shashi Bangur (DIN: 00053300) and Shil Virendraa Bangur (DIN: 00237043 Directors of the Gompany retire by
rotation &t the ensuing Annual General Mesting ang being eugible offer themselves for re-appointment. Your Directors
racommeny theit re- appointmaent,

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does nel have any Subsidiaries, Joint ventures or Associate Companies.

FIXED DEFOSITS

Since the Company has not accepted any fixed depasits covered undeér Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, thete afe no
depaosits remaining unclaimed of unpaid as on 315t March 2024 and accordingly, the question of default in repayment of
deposits or payment of interest thereen, durmg the year, does not arise.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING
THE GOING CONGERN STATUS AND GOMPANY'S OPERATION IN FUTURE

There is no signiticant and material order passed by the regulators or courts of tribunils impacting the going copcern status
and company’s operation n future,

ADEQUACY DF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has implemented and evaluated the Internal Financial Controls whith provide a reasonable assurance in
respect of providing tinancial ang operational information, complng with applicatle statutes and policies, sateguarding of
assets pravention and datection of fralds, Boouracy and completeriess of 2ccounting records, Further, the Board annually
réviews the effectiveness of the Company's internal contryl system. The Directors and Management confim that the Intemal
Financial Controls (IFC) are adequate with respect to the operations of the Complny. A report of Auditors pursuant to
Section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 certitying the adeauacy of Intemal Financial Controls is annexad with the
Auditors repart.

AUDITORS

Pursuant 1o Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Mis,
Dhandhania & Associates (Firm Ragistration No, 316052E), Chartered Accountants, ¥olkata, appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company #t the 104th Annual General Meeting held on 23rd August, 2023 tora periog of 5 consecutive years
from the conclusion of the 104th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 109th Annupl Genetal MEElIng 1o b hely
irh the year 2028,

The Company has abtained necassary consent and ceriticate from M/s. Dhananania & Assoclates, Charterea Accountants,
1o the effect that thelr appalntument, would be in conformity with tha provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
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COSTAUDITORS

The Board of Diractors a1 their meating held on &ih June, 2024 have appainted, Mr. P. Mohan Kumar, Cost Accountant
{Membership No. 16692), Coimbatore as the Cost Audimor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. Pursuant to
Soction 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14.of the Companies [Accounts) Rulas, 2014, the temunsration
payable to the Cost Alditar of the Company |s subjject to the ratification of the sharehalder's 3t the Annual Genaral Meeting.
Naecessary resolution far ratification of the remuneration payable to the Tost Auditor has bieen propesed for the approval of
the Membears at this Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has hean amploying women employees in varlous cadres within the Office / Factory premises. The Company
Ras In place an Antl-harassment policy in Une with the requitements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, Internol Complaint Committee has been setup to redréss complaints
recewed regularly, Thare was nd compliant received from any employee during the financial year 2023-24 and hence no
complaint is outstanding as on 31st March, 2024 {or redrassal,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Since the Company is an Unlisted Company, provisians of rule 5(1) & (2] of the Campanies {Agpointment and Remuneration
of Managoriol Personnol) Rules, 2014 does not apply to the Campany.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016 DURING THE YEAR

Mo applications have been made and no procsedings are pending against the Company under the Insolvency and
Bankmupicy Codle, 2016,

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOQOF

The disclosure under this clause = not applicable as the Company has not undertaken any one-time settlement with the
banks o financial Insutitons.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directars wish 1o thank the Company’s Bankers, Finangial Instiutions, Customers and Suppliers for meir unstinted
support and co-cperation,

Your Directors wish to place on recard their appreciation of the confidence reposed by the sharehalders in the Comipany at
all times.

The Board of Qirectors atso wishes to thank the amployess af all tevels for their excellent support and contribution made by
them.

Forandon behatt of the Board

M.E. PATWARI SHASHIBANGUR
Place: Kolkata Whde Time Director Director

Date: 6% day of August 2024 (DIN D34:248886) [DIN DO053300)
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EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

ANNEXURE <1
ACREAGE STATEMENT
Rubber Division
As on 31st March,2024
Acres Hectares
I} | Mature Rubberi Budded & Clanal 1166.72 472,16
i) | tmmaturs Butber Replanted - Budded
[Inclusive of Teak Plantation of 3.30 Acres (1,33 Hectares)] 456,53 184.75
1623.25 656.91
liiy | Minor Products 217 088
iv) | Power grid area 51.89 21.00
vl | &} Bulldings, Roads, Rocks and Helipads ete. B7.64 36.47
b) Under ravines and low-lying area 24.17 9.78
1789.12 724,04
Tea Division
As on 31st March, 2024
Acres Hectares
?I i 1256.53 208.51
ii) | Coffee 351,03 142.068
i} | Fuel Clearings 103.44 41.86
tv) | Bulldings, Roads, Rocks, Ancillary products etc. 295.358 119,54
2006.38 811.97
For and on behail of the Board
M.K. PATWARI SHASHI BANGUR
Place: Kolkata Whoie Time Director _ Director
Date: 6" day of August 2024 (DIN 03444886) {(BIN 00053300)
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ANNEXURE - 1!

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchiange Earnings and Outgo
[Section 134{3)(m) of the Companias Act, 2013 read with Rule 8{3) of the Compandes [Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A. Conservation of Energy

i) Steps taken for conservation of Energy

Continuous effons are made to conseve energy and optimise usage of energy wherever possible by proper care and

use of machines, installations ete. Periodical maintenance of all equipment’s, machines, installations are taken in
order to avoid By [eakage of energy.

i) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of Energy
The Company has nat undertaken any steps tor utilising altemate sources of enerngy,

ili) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment
The Company has not undertaken any caphial Investment on energy conservaion equipment during the year.

B. Technology Absorption

i) Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
The Cempany has not absorbed any Technology from outsiders

ii) Benefits derived as a resuit of the above efforts: Mot applicable

i) Information of Imported Technology (imported during the last 5 years from the beginning of the Financial
Year): Not applicable

iv) Expenditure incurred on Research & Development: Nil

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

{Amount in Lacs)
Particulars 2023-24 | 2022-23
Eamings In Forelgn Currency .
DOthers b.59
For and on benhall of the Board
M.K. FATWARI SHASHI BANGUR
Place: Kolkata Wiole Thne Director Diractor

Date: 6" day of August 2024 (DN 03444086) (DIN 00053300}
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of KILKOTAGIRI AND THIRUMBADI PLANTATIONS LIMITED
Report an the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying findncial staternents of KILKOTAGIRI AND THIRUMBADI PLANTATIONS LIMITED |“tha
Company”) which compinses the Balance Sheet a5 ar March 31, 2024, the Statement of Prolit and Loss, and statement of
cash flows Tor the year then ended, and notes to the financlal statements, including & summary of significant accounting
palicies prd other exolanatory nformaticn.

In our opinion and toa the best of our Intormation and according to the explanations given to us, the atoresald financial
statEmEn s give the mformation eguired by the At in the mannar so regquiret and g & true and fairview in conformity with
the accounting principles genarally accepted | India, of the state of altalrs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and loss
and Its cash Nows for the year endad on thar date,

Basis for Opinion

We conduct=d our audit af the financial Statements in sccordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) spacified uhder
section 143(10) of the Companes Act, 2013, Our responsibiiities under those: Stundoards are turther described In the
mditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fingncial Statements section of our repart. We are indapandent of the
Company in accordancs with the Code of Ethics issuad by the Instinite of Chariered Accountants of India together with the
gthical requiremznts that are refsvant 1o our audit of the tinancial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ang the Aules thersunder, and we have fUlled our othér ethical responsibilites In aocordance with these
requiraments and the Code of Ethics.

We telleve that the audit evidence we have abtainet! is sufticlent and approprinte 1o provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statemenis.

Key Audit Matters

Key autit matters are thase matiers that, i our professional (udgement, were of mest significance fn our audit of the
financial statements of the current penod, These matters wern oddressed i he conlext of our audit of the financiad
statements as n whole, and in forming our opinlan therear, and vie do not provide a separate oplinion on those matters.

Aeporting of key autlt matters a5 per SA 701 Key Audit matters ate not spplicable to the Campany as it 1s an unlisted
company.

Infarmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report therean

The Company's management and Boird of Dirsciins are tesponsible for the other information, The athes information
oomiprises ihe mfurma_ﬂmi inclisdad in the Annual report, but daes not Incluge the Financial Statamanis and our auditor's
report thareon. Qur opinton an the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do NoT Sxpress any
fiirm of assurance conclusion themEon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility s to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the ather irfarmation (s materally inconsistent with the financial statements orour mowtedge otitoinad in
thie sudit or otheiwhe appiirs 1o be matirlally misatatiod, 1, based on thi work we have perfolined, we conoludi: that thare
is @ material misstatement of this other infarmation, we ane required to report that fact, We hove nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Thie Company’s Board of Directors s responsible for the mat(eds stated o seclion 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the
Act™) with regpect to the preparation of these financial statements thiat give a true and falr view of the financial position,
financipl performance, and cash lows of the Company In accordance with the acoounting principles genetatly accepted In
India, including the accounting Standards speclied under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility also includos
maintenahce of adequate accounting records il accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
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the Compmny and for praventing and detecting frauds and other irregulanities; seloction and application of appropriate
implemantation and malmenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and malntenance of adequate intemal fnanclal controls, that were operating
eftectively tor ensuring the accutacy and completeness of the accounting records, televant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a trus and fair view and are tree from material misstatement, whethar dua
to fraud or rnor.

In pragaring the financial statements; management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue asa going
concem, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the goirg concern basis of accounting unless
management elther intends to liquldate the Company or 1o cease operations, of has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thogse Bamd ol Directors Ale alsg respo nsfhle for oversseing (he company’s linancial repdrling process,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objestives arg 1o obtaln reasonable assurance about whiether the financhal statements as a whola ars fres Irom matenal
misstatement, whether due o frawd or error, and 1o issue an auditar's report the includes our opinjion. Reasongbia
asauranes is & hpn ovel ol assurance, but s not a guarante that an audit eonducted In aceordance with SAs will ahways
datect 3 matatial missiztamant when it exists. Misstatemanls can arise from fraud or o ang 2re considered material if,
individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decislons of users taken on
the basis of these statements.

As part of an sudit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

= [dentity and assess the risks of materlal misstatemant of the financial statements, whether due to froud of error, design
and perfoom audlt procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtalp audit svidence that s sutticient and appropniate 10
provide a basis for our opivkon. Thie risk of nor detecting a material misstatement resditing from fraud (s higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusiori, forgary, Intentional omigsions, misreprasentations, or the override of
im=nyal control

= Obtain an undarstanding of intematl control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ale appropiiate m
the circumstances. Undar saction 143(3)1) of the Companiaz Act, 2013, we are also lesponsible tor exprassing our opinkon
on whether the company has pdequate Internal financial controls system in place and the oparating effectiveniess of such
controls.

+ Evaluata the appmpriatensss of aceounting pollcies (sed aned the redsonpbleness of aceolinting estimares and relnted
disclosures made by management.

* Canclide on the approprintdness of management™s use of the gainp coneern basis of accouting and, Based oo the aodi
evidence obtainad, whether 3 materizl Uncerairty exists relatzd to events or condiions that may c3st significant doulyt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a materal uncenainty exists, we are required to
draw attantion In cur auditor's repon to the related disclosures In the financial stataments or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modity our opinion. Qur copclusions are baseo on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events of conditions may cavsa the Company 1o ¢eass (o conlinug 858 goINg Concerm.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structuwre and content of the linancal statements, intluding the disclosures, and
whather the fingncial statements represent the undeying trensactions and events In-a manngr thot achieves falr
prasantation.

Materlality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statement that, individually or in aggregate, make it probable
that the ecopomic decisions of a reasonably knowiedgeabls uset of the Finanpcial Staement may be influenced, We
consider guantitative matenality and qualitetive factars in (i) pleoning the scope of our audit work and In evaluating the
resuits af ourwerl; and (i) 1o ovaluate the ettac) of any entitied misstatameants in the Finencisl Statament,

We commiinlcate with thaso charged with povernance regacding, among othor matters, the planned seape and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, imcluding any signiticant deficiencies in intamal control that we Identty during our audit.

We also provide these charged with govemance wilh a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding mdepandence, and to communicate with them
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repon) Order, 2020 (“the Drder”), issued by the Central Govesnment ol India in
terms of subssection [11) of saction 143 of the Companias Acl, 2003, we give In the Annaxure A staternent on the matiers
specitied In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder, to the extent 2pplicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the A, we repar that;

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the bast of our knowledge ana belief ware
necessany for the pumoses of auraudit.

a. In pur apinion, proper books of accawnt as required by law have been kept by the Company so a1 as it appears fromm our
examination of those books, except 1or not complying with the requirement audit trail to the extent siated 2/g).

b. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss: and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agraement with the books of acoount;

. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specitied under Saction 133 of
tha&ct, read with Rule 7 of the Campianies [Azcounts) Rules, 2034,

d. On the basis of the wnitten representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 2024 taken on record by the
Board of Direclors, none of the directors is'disgualified as on 315t Mareh, 2024 troim being appointed as 3 director in
teims of Secton 164 (2) of the Acl.

2. With respact to the adequacy of the Internal linancial controls over linancial reporting ol the Cormipany 2nd the operating
ettectiveness of such controls, reler to our separate Report in “Annexure B",

. 'With respact to the othar matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit ang Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and accareling to the explanations
given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations cn (s financial pesition (n ts financlal statements -
Rafer Note 33 to tha linanceal statemants;

B} The Company did not have any long-tem contracts including desivative contracts for which there were any matarial
lores=gable losses;

¢) Thire has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transterred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

. (1) The Management has rapresented that, to the bast of b knpwledge and belle, other than as disclosed in the Note 556

to the accounts, no funds have been amvanced of loaned or Investad (sither from bortowad funds or share pramium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 1o of in any other parson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitiss
(“Intermedianes”], with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly of Indirectly lerd or Invest in othier persons of entities identified In any mannet whatdoever by or ¢n behatt ol
the Company {(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”] or provide any gliarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Bersficiaries.
{ii) The Management Has represented, that, to thi: best of it's knowledge and belinl, other than as disclosed In the Note
56 to the accounts. no funds have been received by tha Campany from any personis) or emtityiles), including foreign
entities |"Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in wiiting of otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of
the Funding Parry ("Ultimate Beneficiarles"] ar prvide any puarantes, secutlty or the Uke o bahalt of tha Ultimate
Benoficiaries.
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(lii) Based on the sudll procedures performad that have bean considessd regsonsble and spprophiste i the
circumstances, nothing has come to our nolice that has caused us to belisve thal the representations under sub-
clauea (1) and (i) of Rule 11(e) contain any matesial mis-statement.

h. The Company has nol daclired or paid dividend during the year antd hance reporting is not applicable for compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year anded 317 March 2024

I, The reporting under Hule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 15t April
2023. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the Instances mentioned below, the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining Its books of account except Fixed Asset Reglster &
Payroll Records, which have a feature of recording audit trall (edit log) tacility and the same has operated
thraughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the respective software systems,

(1) The campany has used an sccalnling software Tor nantaining of 15 payroll recorgs at te Tnirumbadl Estate &
Kilkotagir] ‘Estate wharein the accoonting software used did not have the audit trail (edit iog) facitimy enabled
throughout the financial year.

(I} Further, thete is no sudit trail (edit log) facility enabled at the database l2vel for the accounting software used for
both the general business functions and payroll records to log any direct data changes made, If any.

[iil} We draw altention to hote no, 37 annaxed 1o the financisl statainants wharain it has bean disclased that the
coinpany has migratad to a naw software w.af. 1% Apnl, 2023 in compliance of proviso 1o Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Further, during the coursz of our audit we did not come across any Instancas of aud|t trail featura belng tampered
with, in respect of accounting softwares for the panod forwhich the sudit trail faature was operating.

Az proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable frem 17 Apnl. 2023, reporting under
Rule 11 {g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rulas, 2014 on pre*s_m*nn‘m of audit trall as ' por the statitory
raguiremants for record ratention is not applicable for the yaar ended 31" March, 2024,

3. With respect to the matter 1o be ncluded in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our apinion and according to the imformation and explanations glven to us, the remuneration pald by the Company to its
directors during the.curnent year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
gitectol Is not in excess of the limit Laid down urider Saction 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Comorate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required 1o be commented upon by us,

For and on behalf of
DHANDHANIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No. 316052E
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, PARTNER
(Membership No. 057055)
Place: Kolkata
Date: 6" day of June, 2024 UDIN: 240570558KMBIVB215
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ANNEXURE- ATO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
{Refemed to in Paragranh 1 undes the heading of “Report op Other Legal and Regulatory Requivements™ of our report of even date for the
yiearandod March 31, 2024)

On the basis of such checks as we considered aporoprigte and accarding o the mformation and explanation glven 1o us
during the course of our awiin, we reporn that!

i, In respect of its property, plant and equipments;

{a) (A) As per the records examingd by Us and as per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including quantitative detalls and situation of property plamt and
equipmant.

{B) As per the racords sxaminad by Us and as pet the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars. including guantitative detalls and situation of Intangible assets.

(b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verfication of its progarty plent and equipmeants in a phassad manner
1o cover all the property plant and equipments aver 3 period of three years. Accordingly, Company has physically verified
plant and machineries duting the year, In our opinlon, this petiodicity of physical vertfication Is reasonable having ragard
1o the size af the Company and the nature of its assets. As per the information and explanations given to us and as
certified to us, no muterial discrepancies were noticed on such varification,

{c} Based on ouf examination of the property tax recelpts and lease agreement lor land on which bullding is constructed,
registerer) sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed providad to us, we report that, the title in raspect of sell-
constructed bulldings and title deeds of all other Immovable proparties (other than properties where the company Is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favolr of the lessee), disclosed In the financial statements
includzd under Proparty, Plantand Equipment are held in the name of the Campany as atthe halance shest date sxcept
Lane of Thirbrmbsad division a1 Thirumbad] Estate, ds show balw!

Whetha Pancd held
5L Description Gruss Hedd inname PIOMINER “koiiate Reason lor not being he|d
No. | ofProperty ﬁ*‘”‘.}‘*ﬂH of dlr.t.rclnr ] i, i name of company
- vailE thir reditive wiens
of employee | approprate
Theland was leasehidd propesty of which the
Supreme Coutt vide its order dated 02 July
Land of Erntwhiie 2015 gven |udgement | favoa of the
Thirumadi Rates Thrrmnha di Overioo | SOMRany. The Appellata Agharmy, Kanmw
1 Diviston m Mota 12 Rubber Co Mo Yeirs has sel asice order of Langd Triounat and
Thirumbad &31 L. (TRC) remanded back the fatte: Tor ssue of
Estate Purchase Cerificate In the mamie of the
Company, (Réfar note o 31 to the Npancisl
statempnts)

(d}Accarding 1o the information and explanatians given 1o us and oft the biasis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the company has not revatued its property, plant and eguipment (including right to use assets) or intangbls
assels or both during the year,

(e} According to the inforination and explandation given to us dnd as certified to Us, proceedings have not been Inltiatad or are
pending against the company for holding any Benami Property undor the "Benam| Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
and Rules made thereunder.
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i Inrespect of s inventones:

{8)As per the Information and explanation glven to us and as verified by us, management |s veritylng Inventory ot regubin
Imtervals. during the year. In our opinion, the freguency of verification |s reasonable. As per the information and

explanation given to us and a8 verified by us, the company hasnol noticed discrepances of 10% or mora in the DEgregate
for @ach classof ilwenton).

[b)As per records and documents examined by us and as per information and explanations given to us, the Company has
avalled working capttal facilities In excess of As. § Crares during the year from banks on the basls of sacurity of current
assets and standing crops. According to Informiation and explanations glven to Us and, In our opinion, the statoments of
currant assets of the quarters submitted by the company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of
the accounts of the company other than thpse as st out below;

Amount Rs, (n Locs

pregRee Warking AL, il
Mgt Cipdtsl Linil o Amb o jdetoseg & : Wdriance
al Bapk Sonctiaaed (Fung & Cuuirser Bridedt mef Statemdi [&) - HFD?W“ Cr{aB) Rawi
T -Funid Bacod )
A e, 2075 FIEE GHARS (.37} | The bamk hos bean prowded
Wity Ahe STanTTIRE @t T
bk ot 0% S, 2023 754 51 73 68 o83 | "o u,ﬂ:uLhm iy il
fasodn As, G50 erarea - '
(CC Easility) = 3170, 2023 #5540 855,77 [137) | Funmner Siocko of  Loase
) = Topls sre not comsidered 6
317 Mar, 2024 777.53 THB.ZS [B72) | Symek Sratenpnt

* Becimed prenanily by wity of hypotmecaion of Rincl. staiding crops & bonk dabits present Aifure.

il Avcording W the nformation and explanations given 1o us and on the basks of our examination of the records of the
Company. the Company. has not made any Investments. provided guorantes or sccurlty or granted any advances in the

nature of logns, secufed or Unsacired, to companies, firms, Umited Uzbliily parnerships ot any other parties durihg the
year.

{a] A. Based on the audit proceditas catried an by us and as per the information and explanations given 1o us, e Company
do not have subsidiary. clause 3(lli{{a) of the Order is not applicable.

B. Basad onthe audit procedures camied on Dy us and as per the intomanon and explanatons given 1o us, the Company
has not granted loans to'a party ather than subsidiaries during the year.

(b} According Lo Lhe mformsrtion and explanations green (oous and basad oo e audil procedures conducted by us, wizare of

the opinion that the tefms and conditions of the loans glven are prima facke, not prejudicial to the Inmlest of the
Company.

(c) According ta the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company, in the case of lpans gven, the repayment of pancipal 5 on demand and payment of mterest has been
stimulEted and the recalpts of interest have Dean regulEr,

(d)According to the Information and explanations €iven (o us and oh the basls of our examination of the recards of the
Company, there is no overdus amount Tor imore than ninety days In respact of loans glven,

(e}According 1o the Information and explanations given to us and on the basls of our axaminaton of the records of the
Company, there |5 no loan given falling dus duning the year, which has been renewer or extendad of fresh leans given to
settle the overdue of exdsting loans given to the same party.

(1] According o the infammation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has given loan repayable on demand, howover in respect of which rate of interest and payment
of interest have been specified, which is shown belowe
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{Amourt As. in Lace]

| 5; Particulives MiBates | Promoters F;::‘::::'
1 | Agpregate amount of loans/ advances outstinding in niture of loans !
- Repayable on damand {4) - - 100
| -Agreement does not specify any ferms ar penod of repayment {#) S : =
Total Loans (A+B) : . 100
] Pore ertage of leant and adeancos if The rature oF [odins 1o etal [Bans (in ') - . L0

v, According tp the infarmation ana explanations gven o us and on the basis ol our examination of the reconds. the
Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies
Acr. 2013 during the year. Further, the Company has compllad with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Acr,
2013 Inrelation to loans glven and Iivestments made.

v. As per information and explanation ghven to us and the records examinad by us, we are of the opinion that the Company
has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any athar relevant provision of the Act
and the rules framad these under and i contravention of Resaive bank of India’s directives. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the
Order s not applicable,

vi. As per the Informatlon and explanations given to us, the cost audit is not required as the overall annual trmaver of the
company fror all its products and seqvices in the immadiately presious financial year iy [@ss than Rs. 100 Crores. Wa have
however broadly reviewed the cost records maintainad by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cast Accounting
Records) Rules, 2011 prescriied by the Cantral Govemment under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ana are of
ihe opinion thal prima lacie the prescribed cost records have been properly maintained by the Comparny.

vii. In respect of statutoly dues:

[a) According to the records of the Company examined by us. the company is ganerally regular in depositing undispured
statutory dues including pravident fund, employse’s state insurance, Incame fax, sales tay, value added tax, goods and
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, service tax, cess and other applicable statutory dues and no aforesaid dues
are gutstanding as at 31st March, 2024 1ar a period of more than slx months ram the date they became payabie.

{b) According 1o the information and explanations givan to us and the recards examined by us, the particulars of dues of
income tax, sales tax, duty of excise, service tax, Value added tax as at 31st March, 2024 which have not bean deposited
an accalnt of disputes are given in Annexure-C.,

vill, According to the nfermation and explanations diven to Us and recards of the company examined by us In our opinian,
the camparny has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction previously unrecorded Income in tax assessment under thi
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

e (8) According to tha records of the Company examined by us and the Iinfarmation and explanations given o us, the
company has not defalilted In repayment of loans or athér borioWwings ar in the paymant of intefest 1o Banks and ather
lengers during the year and lpan-amounts are not overidue as at the Balance Sheet date,

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us @nd recoras of the company examinsg by us In our opinion,
the company Is Dot declsred as willtl defaulter by banks o othes lenders,

(€} According fo the information and explanations given th us by the management, the Company Has not obiained new
term loan duning the year, Accardingly, clause 3(ix) () of the Order is notapplicabie.
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(d) Acconding fo the infarmation and explanations gven 1o us and an an overall examination of the halance sheel of the
Cormginy, we report that Cormipany fas not utillzed sliort twim [unds for Long leem purposas.

() Accarding ro tha inlamation and edplanations givan to us and o an ovitrall exarmination of the Hnsatial statemsnts
of the Company, we repon that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person an account of or to meel
the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined undar the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clzuse 3{ix)(e) of the Order |5
nol applicable.

(1) According 1o the infermation and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we repon that the
Company has not ralsed loans during the yearon the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined uncler the
Comgpanies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 30K of tie Order s not agplicable.

X f2) The Compdry has not raised any moneys by way of Initial public offer or futher public offer (including debr
instrumentsh, Accordingly, clause 3ix) (a) of the Omer is not appbcabie.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and o the basis of our examination of the recoras of the
Carnpany, the Company has not made any preterential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
converfibie debentures durning the year. Accordingly, clause 3ix){b) of the Order is not applicatls.

wi. {a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Caompany and according 1o the infermation and axplanations
given to us, consideting the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that fo fraud by the
Cormgary of on e Company has been nuliced of reporied during e cowse of the audit.

{0} Ancording to the mformation ang sxplanalions glven to us, no repar intet subi-sechion (12] of Section 143 ot 1he
Companias Act, 2013 has been filed by the-auditors in Form ADT -4 as prescribad under Rute 13 of Companies (Audit and
Autitors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Cavernirnent,

(e)We have taken Into tonsidealion the whistle blovar complainls recalvid by [hie Company during the yesit while
determining the nature, timing and extent of our auddt procedures,

¥il, According to the Information ang explanations given to us, the Company Is not a Nidhl Camgany, Accordingly, clause
At of the Order is not appiicable

wll. 1 our opinion and according to the infolmation and explanations given tb us, the ransactlons with related pasties are
in compliance with Sectlons 177 and 158 of the Companles Act. 2013, where applicable, and the datalls of the related panty
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standands.

wlv. [4) Based on information and cxplanations provided to us and our audit procedurizs, in our opinion, the Cortipany has
an intermal audit system commensiurate with the size and nature of s business, although as per the prowsions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Company is not required to have an internal sudil systerm because Lhe tumover ol the Company
inthie imrnediately praceding financial year was below Bs.200 Crores.

(b} We kave considerad the infernal sudit reporis of the Company issued till date for the period under audit,
v, Inoul bpinidn and according Lo the information ant explatialions lven o U8, the Corfmparny has hol ofiletisd 0o any

non-cash transactions with its directoss of persons connected ta Its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not appbicable to the Company,

#vi. [3) The Company 1S not regulned to be repisterad under Saction £5-IA of the Resarve Bank of Indla Act, 1934, Accardingly,
clauss 3wl |(b) of the Ordar IS not applicable.

{b) The Company is not 2 Core Invesimant Company (CIC) as defiped in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, clavsa 3(xvi)(c) of the Order ks hat applicable.
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wil. The Company has not incurrad cash losses in the cument and In the immediataly preceding financial year,

wviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviil) of the Orger is not
applicabla

ix, According to the information and explanations given o us and an the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expacted
dates ol realisation of financial assels and payment ol financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 1o belleve that any material uncertainty
exists as an the date of the audit report that the Company Is not copable of meeting its liabllities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they faill due within 8 period of one yaar from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this = not an assurance as 1o the futlre viabillty of the Comparny. We further state that our reparting is based on the lacts Up
to the date of the audit repont and we neithier glve any gusrtantes nor any assutance that sl Uabllites falling due within a
petiod of ope year from the balance sheat dite, will got discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

o In our apinion and according to the infermation and explanations given to Us, the campany is not required o make CSR
expenditire as the company's net profit is in negative and the Section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013 is not applicable.
Ascordingly, reporting under clayses 3{xx)|a) and 3{xx)(b) of tha Order are not applicable.

Forand on behaif of
DHANDHANIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 316052E
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, PARTNER
(Membership No. 057055)
Place: Kolkata
Date: 6" day of June, 2024 UDIN: 240570558KMBIVE215
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Report on the Intemal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles
Act, 2013 (“the Act"))

We have audiied the imternal financial controls over financial reporting of KILKOTAGIRI AND THIRUMBADI PLANTATIONS
LIMITED [“the Company™} as of March 21, 2024 n conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
e year&ndad on that dats:

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management |5 respansible for estEblishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the
intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
intemal control stated (n the Guidance Nota an Audic of intereal Financiat Gontrols over Financlal Reporning issued by ihe
Institule ol Chartered Accountants of tdia™. Thuse esponsibiblies include the design, implementation and mainlenance of
adequate \nternal finanoal controls that were operating effectively for ensunng the orderly and efficient conduct of its.
pusiness, including adhierenca to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and armrs; the acouracy and compieteness of the accounting regords, and the timely praparation of retlable financial
informotion, os required dnder the Compiinies A, 2013,

Auditors’ Respansibility

Our regponsibflity ks to express an apinion on the Company's Internel firancinl controls over financial reporting besed on our
aldit, We esnduciad aur audf In secordance with tha Guidancs Note on Audit of Internal Brancial Catrals Over Firaneil
Reporting (the “Guidancs Nom") and the S@Endards an Auditing, Issued tiy ICA and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of e CompaniesAcy 2013, Lo Lhe extanl applcabls 1o an audit of inlemal liodncial sontrols, both applicable 1o an
audit of Intemal Financlal Controls and bath lssued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note requim that we comply with ethical reguiremants and ptan and poform the audit to obtain reasomabio
assurance about wheiher adequate infernal financial cantrols over linancial reporfing was established and maintained and
itsuch controls operated affectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit invalves parforming precedures to obtain audit evidence abaut the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systern over financial reponing and their opesating effectveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over Nnancial
rapoting incluged obiaining an understanding of Intemnal financtal contrals over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 3
materal weakness ensts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating elfectivenass ot internal control based on he
assegsad risk. The procedurss selected depend on the auoitor's judgamant, Including the assesamant of the risks of
mnterial misstatement of the Finomeial Statements, whathor dize to feaud or errr.

We ballsye that the audit evidence wa have cbtained s sutliclent and appropriate to pirovide a basls tar our audlt oplnien o
the Company's internal financinl controls system over financis reparting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting

A company's imernal financial control over financial reporting is 3 process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the raliability. of tUnanclal faporting and the preparation of teanclal statemeEnts tar Bx@mal pdrposes In
accordance with generally acceptod accounting principles. A company's internal financial control ovar financial reporting
includes those policies and provedures (that: (1) perain wo thie maintenance of recends thal, in reasonable detall, accurately
and fairly Feflact the transsctions and dispositiony of the dssets ol the compary; (2) prtovide reasonnble assirpnce that
trinsacions ame recorded as necessary to parmit proparation. of Financial Statements i occordance with genarally
accepted accounting principles, and thpt receipts and expenditures of the company are being madea only In scoardiance with
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EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

autharizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonahle assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorired acqulsition, use, or disposition of the company’s assels that could have & mater gl effect
on the financial statemants,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Becsuse of the inheremt limitations of internal financial controls over financlal reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper managemant override of controls, material misstatements dug to eron or fraud may occur and not be
datected. Also, prajections of any evaluation of the internal financial contrals over financial reporting to future perinds arae
subject 1o the risk that the internat financhal control over financial feporting may become Inadequate bacause of changes In
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policles or procedures may deterlorate,

Opinion

In gur opinion, the Company fas, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial comirols system over financial
reportng and such internal financial controls over financial reparting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based
on “the Internal control over financial reporting crteria estabiished by me Company consigering the essential components
of Imernal control statad in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of ndia”™

For and on behalf of

DHANDHANIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 316052E
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, PARTNER
(Membership No, 057055)

Plate: Kolkata
Date: 6" day of June, 2024 UDIN: 24057055BKMBIVB8215
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ANNEXURE - C: [REFER POINT No. VI {b) OF THE ANNEXURE -ATO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Name af Amount ; o
Statue Nature of Dues (Rs In Lacs.| Period Forum where the dispute is Pending
| AY: 18987-98
Disatlowainees arlsing in 48,91 AY:1998-99 Company has filed SLP In Slipreme
Assessment Proceedings AY; 1989-00 Court against order of High Court.
AY: 2000-01
Disallowances arising In : : Appeal filed before Income Tax
Assessment Proceedings iy A ZULE Appellate Tobunal, Cochin Bench
Disallowances arising In . - Commissioner of Income Tax
Assessment Proceedings +01 Ay -1 (Appeals) 1. Kozhlkode.
Central Disallewances arising in : ) Apgeal filed betore Income Tax

ihcoime Tax | Assessmont Proceedings o e R Appellate Triblnal, Cochin Bench
Disallowances arising in ‘ Appeat filed betore Income Tax
Assessmant Proceedings —— e Appaliate Tnbunal, Coctin Beach
Disallowances arising in ; Commissioner of Income Tax
Assessmant Procaedings A20e AY:2034-15 (Appeats) L. Kozhikode.
Disallowances arising in . i Commissioner of Incore 1ax
Assagyment Proceedings Lol AYi2035-18 (Appeais) 1, Kozhikode.
Dizdllowances snsingin , Commussioner of Income Tax
PR S (NOTE 2) AY:2017-18 (Apriesis) 1. Kazhlkoge.

Karala g . " giie
Agricultura Disallowances znising in 10.05 AN 2010-11 Appeal Is filed 1o Hon'ble High
ey Assessment Proceedings Court of Kerala,

NOIE 1! The Assessing officer In the assessment tor AY 2015-16 had made certain additions |n the retutn of income tiled by
the company, The demana of income tax on account of the additions in the income were adjusizd from the broughn forward
losses completely for AY 2015-18. The company had disputed the additions and filed appeal with Commissioner income Tax
(Appeals), Koznikode

NOTE 2: The Assessing officer in the assessment for AY 2017-18 had made certain additions in the retum of income Tited by
the comipany. The Tax assessed was Rs 1.36 Lacs alter adjustman of Carried| farward of losses. The company had disputed
tha additions and filed appeal with Commissioner Ingome Tax [Appeals), Kozhikode.

For and an behalf of

DHANDHANIA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountamts

Firm Registration No. 316052€
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, PARTNER
[Membership No. D57055)

Flace: Kolkata
Date: 8" day of June, 2024 LDIN: 24057055BKMBIVE215




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEETAS AT 31STMARCH, 2024
Note As at Anat
PARTICULARS No; 315t March 2024 Zist March 2023
{Rs. in Lacs) [Rs. In Lacs)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
i) Share Caplinl 2 41.85 41.85
i) Beserves And Surplus 3 3,124.44 3,182 .80
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
il Long-Tarm Borroaangs &4 - 333
] Dwiferred Tox Clatibites 5 26.70 2092
iy e Lomg Termn Labilities -] 42.61 43.51
) Long-Term Frovisions 7 206.67 211.83
CURRENT LIABILITIES
I} Shivit-Termn Borrow|ngs ] am.ay BRO 61
it} Trade Pembles - Total Outstand|iig Dues To a
- Micro & Small Enterprises 16,73 16.72
~ Other Than Micro & Small Enterprisas 376.11 Z239.98
i) Other Current Liabiltes 10 497.62 4652.53
) Shont-Tenm Provisions 11 200,83 184£.33
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 4,914,54 4572 51
IL ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
I] Property, Plant & Equipment and |ntangible Assste 12
(A) Tangible Assets 1,717.39 145471
(B) Intangible Assets 0.00 0.09
(C) Capital Work In Progress 425,88 626,07
i) MNon Current Iswsstmonts 13 E74.51 G65.08
ill} Long Term Loans And Advances 14 34563 375.28
) Other Nen Curren Agasts 15 6.51 651
CURREMNT ASSETS
1) Qv Irvesimeniy 16 807.07 7225
i) Inventories i7 538,499 Sa0.28
i) Trade Recanvablng i 250,50 124,59
iv) Casty Ang Coah Equilvalents 19 15.67 7401
v} Other Bank Balances 20 5.17 575
wi} Shomnt- Term Loans And Allvances 2 27,66 19.77
vil] Gther Cumant Assets 22 100.25 106.11
TOTAL ASSETS a4,.914.54 d4.85072.01
Sianificant Aceounting Policies 1
The Notes relerred to abave farm an infegral part of the Balanse Shest
This Is the Balance Shoet relerred 1o n out repon of even date
For & On bahail of
DHANDHAMNIA & ASSOCIATES SHASHI BANGUR
Chartered Accountants Direoto
Firtn Rpgistraiion No. 316052E [EMM DDOS3Z00)
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, Partmas
[Membsarahip No: 057056) MLICPATWARL VIRENDRAA BANGUR
Placn @ Kolkats Direactor & CEOQ Dilrecto:
Datad : 8th day of hire, 2024 (DN 03444886) (DN D0237043)
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FiSSENR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024
fhoth For thie yaar endod For the year enden
PARTICULARS Na. 3ist March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(As. in Lacs) [Rs. in Lacs)
1 Rovenuwe From Operatlons 23 10,057 .29 7004 08
2  Orther Income 24 121.35 123.58
3 TOTAL REVENUE 10.178.64 7177 .66
4 EXPENSES:
Cost ol Materials Consumaeii 25 5,752.00 3.366.85
Purchase of Trading Goods 382.50 S24.61
Changes in Inventodes of Finished
Goods and Stock-In-Trave % 83,50 050
Employee Banatit Expanse 27 1.888.45 1664271
Financial Costy 2a 48.60 54.93
Bepreciation and Amorfization Expense 28 18290 16524
Manufacturing and Othor Expanses 30 1,848.65 1.541.18
TOTAL EXPENSES 1028621 7.277.56
5 PROFIT /{LOSS) BEFOREEXCEPTIONAL AND e i
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND TAX (3-4) { ) \ A
6 Exceptional ltmms -
7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY (67.57) (149,90}
ITEMS AND TAX |5 - 6)
8 Extraordinary ltoms :
9 PROFIT /[LOSS) BEFORETAX (7 -8) 187.57) (145.90)
10 TAX EXPENSES:
(1) Current tax -
{11} Dyarlerrod tas (8.21) [78.37)
11 PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
GONTINUING OPERATIONS (9 - 10) (55.28) (123.54)
172 EARNING PER SHARE AFTER TAX (INRS.}
Basic & Diluted (Retor Note No. 42) (13.85) (28.52)
Slgniflcant Accounting Palicles, 1
The notes refermed to above {orm an integral part of the Statemant of Profitand Loss
This is the Statement of Protit & Losa referred (o in ow reparn of evan date
Far & On behailt of
DHANDHAMIA & ASSOCIATES SHASHI BANGUR
Charrerad ACcouniants Directol
Firm Registration No.316082E {DIN D0O53300)
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, Partnar
(Membership No: 057055) M.E.PATWARI VIRENDRAA BANGUR
Place : Kolkata Director & CEO Diractor
Datad ; &th day of Juna, 2024 (PN 034448H6) (DN G6237043)
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EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH 2024

For the year ended Fow the year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March| 2023

(As. InLacs) IRs. In Lacs)

A Cash fMow from oparating activities
MNat Pralit / (Loss) before extraordinaryy iteing and tox |67.57) {149.90)
Adfcestments o
Deprociation and amortisstion 182.90 165,24
Firionn costs 48.50 54.93
Fixed Anzots Wrltten ol 0.13 314
Intarast Inoome {25.98) {26.60)
(Profit) £ Loss an sale of assats (2.04) {8.32)
[Prafit) F Loss ah ale of investhients {36.07] {46 86)
Cividend an Invetzment |:_5_.‘.I-._:IE: 114.20 {33.09) 108.63
Oparating proflt / (loxs) befors worklng capital changes 46,62 {41.27)
Changes in wodking capital:
Adicestrenis for fncrease ) S decremnie i openriing assoiy
Inventorion 1.29 24720
Trade recalvables (125.91) 65.76
Shor-temm Loans ano advanoes [7-31) .09
Linrg Term Lonns and pdvances jind
lel::r Non Cuoment Assets (15 (0-15)
Othar elrroivt assots B.45 ({126.54) 1B.80 240,70
Aclfimtments for lncrease / (decrease) i operiting liabilites;
Lang Term Liapilities 0,10 0.90
Long Term Provisians [5.26) 0.55
Tratle payahiss 137.14 {82 E5)
Other cutrent Uabilitles 35.080 {35.88)
Short-T8rm provisions 16.49 183.57 (42,58) (159.80)
Cash generated from cperations 103.65 139.63
Ml Income tax (pald) 7 refunds 10.90 (.58
Mat canh flow from / {used In) aperating sctivities (A) 114.585 134.65
B. Cazh flow from investing activities
Capmal expenditurs on fixsd assets, including capital advances. [224.60) (4Sd.45]
Proceads from sals of fiked assets 3.02 8.684
Initeniebsil roeiived 25 48 26,40
Dwidend Received 53.35 33.08
vestrisnts-net 19182 285,77
Met cash flow from / (uséd In) investing activities (B) 49 57 (129.35)
C. Cashllow from financing activitles
Increase/{Decroase) of Long Term Borrow|ngs (3.33) (16.67}
Procoods from Short -torm borrowingn (170.64) 6335
Dividend paid o L
Finanpoe cost {I-B,Eﬂj_ { 5493{
Net cash flow from / (used in] financing activities [C) [222.57] (B8.256]
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31STMARCH 2024

& —

For the year ondad For tive year snded
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
[Rs. In Lacs) (As. In Lacs)
Nel Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cashaguivalents [(A+B+C) (58.45) [2.95)
Cash and ciash equivalents at the beginning of the year 74.01 76.96
Eftact al exchange ditarencos on restatamant of loreign i
currency Canh and caah aguivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end ol the yoar 15.57 74.01
Reconciliation of Cash & cash equivalents with the Bolance Sheel:
Cash and cash equivalents as par Balsnce Sheet {Refar Note 19) 1557 74.01
Lose: Bank batanced not congidommd as Cash @nd cash egquivalants
as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Staternents (ghve detalls) )
Met Caall gid chsh aguivilsety (as delingd In AS 3 Cash Flow 15.57 24.01
Statements ) included in Note 19
Add: Current investmisnts consldamd ag parn of Cish and cash
stuivalents {as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Stafaments ) :
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year * 15.57 74.01
* Comprises:
[n) CasH and Chediias an hatd 2.39 136
{&) In current and Oyerdratt accounts A.36 225
(¢} In Fixed Deposit 8.82 15.57 70.41 74,01
15.57 7401

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

The above csuh flow hias baan prepared undar the Indirect Mathod a8 set out In the Accounting Standard - 3 (Revisad) on
Cash Flow Statements ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indis

This ks the Cash Flow Statement referred to In our report of even date,

Far & On behalf of
DHANDHANIA & ASSOCIATES
Charterad Accolumaints

Firrn Rogistraticn No, S16052E

SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, Partrar
(Membership No; D57055)

Place : Kolkata

Dated | Gth day of hins, 2024

M.E.PATWAR|
Directar & CED

(DIN 02444886)

SHASHI BANGUR
Director
((HN ODOS3300)

VIRENDRAA BANGUR

Ditecton
(DN QO237043)

lid
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EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Kilkotagin and Thirumbadi Plantations Limited (Formaerty KEnown as The Thirumbadl Bubber Company Limited) is
primarily efgaged in growing and manufactuting ol Rubbar, Tea, Coffes and Diher Mitor Agricultural Produce, The
Company has rubber plantations at Thirumbacl Estate situated near Mokkam P.O 673602, Kozhikode In the state of
Keralg and Tea & Coftee Mantabons at Kilkotagin Estate wm Milgivis, Temiinadu. The Company s domiciled in indiaand
bt Tl Feglittedod ol it ot ThitumbDadi Estate, Mokkam P.O - 873802 , Kodhikode liv Uhe stote of Kedala

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These linancial statemonts have been prepared in accordanca with thia Genarally Accepled Accounting Principlesin
India undar the histerical cost convention on accrual basts. Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companles [Accourts) Role 2014, tll the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto ane
prescribed by Central Govwarnment in consultation and recormmaoandation af the Nationisl Financiesl Reparting Authority,
the existing Accounting Standards natified under the Companies Act, 1958 shall continue o apply. Consequently,
these financial statemeants have been prepared to comply In all material aspects with accounting standards notified
undet Soction 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 18586 [Comparnies [Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, os amonded)]
and other relevant provisions of the Componles Act, 2013, The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
financial statements are consist=nt with those followed in previous year unless otherwise mentioned.

All agsets and liabilities have been classified as curment or non-curtent as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out n the Schedule Hl to the Companles Act, 2013, The Company has treated twelve months as
Its opemting cycle for elasaification (Mo curfent and non current assers,

1.2 USE OF ESTIMATES .

The praparation of the financlal statements is n conformity with Indian GAAP [(Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles) and requires management to make estimales and assumptions that affectthe reported amounts of assets
and liabilitles and disclosures of contingant Unbsilities on the date of the financial statements. The estimates and
assumptions mode and appliad in preparing the financinl statements are bosad upon managament's best knowladgs
of current events aid detions as on' the dote of finandial statemems. However, die 1o dpcertalnlies attachied Lo e
assumptions and estimates made, actual results could differ from those estimated. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognisad prospactively in current and future perlods.

L3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

{a) Tangible Asseta

Property. Plant and Equimeants are stited ot cost ol acquisition or construction [net of dutles and laxes that are
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) less accumulated dopreciation, All costs that are directly
attributatie to the acquisition and nstallation of Praperty. Plant and Equipmmant are capitalised and include borrowing

costs directly attributabie to construction or acquisition of qualllying assets. Property, Plant and Equirnents nol ready
for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosad as "capital Work-in-progress”.

Bearsr Plarts wre classified as Imrhature untll the produce can be commarcially harvested. Al that point thiy afe
reclass|fied as Mature and depreciation commences,

Profil or losses on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
cilculated ad difference betwaen the value reallsed and the wrilten dovwn valde,

{b) Imangible Assets

Costs incured on intangible assets, resulting in wiure econemic benefits are capitalilsed as manglble assets,
Intangible daséts are stoted at cost less nccumulsted arnortisation and cumulitive impalrrment losses, IFany.

a3
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

{c) Pepreciation & Ammortisation

Depreclation on Wmngible assefs is provided on written down value method over the ysetul life of the assats as
prescribed under Part C af tha Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 Depreclation for 85seis purchased / sold during
the peried IS propodionalely changed.

Thia Depreeiation on Bearer Pants (Mature Tea Bashies, Coffea Plarits, Pepper vinea and Rubber Plants) is provided on
the remaining useful lite of Tes Bushes as on 0104, 2018, The economic life of Bearer Plants is treated as follows:

Ted Bushes - 100 years (Base on cettificate provided by UPAS) Tea Research Foundation)

Coftes Plants - Arablica - 75 years - and Robusta - 100 years

Rubber Plants - 25 years

Papper Vines - 40 years

Depreclation and .umwt!satiunlmeﬂmds. usaful life and residual values are reviewed periodically and adjustment, if
appropriate | s made at the end of each reporting period.

For additions to Property, Plant- & Equipiment dufing the course of the year depretistion / amortization Is being charged
on a proportionate basis flom the date of put 1o use.

1.4 GOVERNMENT GRANTS
|} Subsidies recelved trom Tea Board of Indla and Rubiber Board are accountad for an recelpl basis.

1) Subsidy related to specific assots are adjusted with the value of the Propeity, Plant and Equipment.
i) Subsicy reloted to revenue [tems are taken as income.

1.5 INVESTMENTS

Long Term Inveatments are stated of cont with an appropriate provision for diminution in volue, othor than tamporary
In natire. Current Investments are siated at lower of cast and fair value. Gains / Losses on tlisposal of Investmants are
recognised as Income / Expenditura.

1.6 INVENTORIES
(1) Riw materials ore valued ot wolghted averagio landed cost
(f) Stok-in-Trade s valued at lower of cost or nat roalisabile value. Cost comprises axpenditure incurred in tha
normal course of business and bringing such inventories (o thelr present location and condition and includes
appropriate overhead.
{iii) Stores & Spare parts and Loose Tools are vatued at weighted average cost
(v} Provigion is made for obsolete and slow-moviny stock, whersver necessmy.

1.7 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(I} The Company makes regular monthly contribution ta Provident Fund based on percentage of salary and depasit
with the appropnate Government authornties.

(1)  Gratuity is provided on the basis of actuarlal valuastion as at the year end and s lunded,

(i} :zm encashmeant liability being shott 1erm in nature, is accrued on the basis of amount payable as at the year

1.8 REVENUE RECOGNITION

(i} Sale of Rubber,Tea and Coffee are recorded at net of Goods and Seivice Tax. The sale is treated when risk and
reward is ransferred 10 Buyer os agreed upon,

(i) Sale of old Rubber trees / Shade trees |5 recorded based on the agreement execited fol the sale as standing trees
mxcluding Tax Collected at Sourco.
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EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART QF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

(i) Revenue from intercropping license fees is recognised on accrual basis.

(v} Intarestincomo is recognised on accrusl bases unless collectibility is in doubt,

{vi Dividend Inpome Is recognised as and when the right to receive the dividend is established,
ivi} Insurance Claimis recognised on mceipt basis,

1.9 BORROWING COSTS

Bormowing costs, if attributable to qualitying assats Le. assets that necessarily take substanmtial period of time to get
ropdy for ity Intended use or sale are copltallsed, otherwise charfged 1o Profit & Lass Account.

1.10 TAXES ON INCOME
Incame tax expense Comprises current 1ax and daferred tax charge. Current tax s detenmined as the amount ol tax
payable In respéct of taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and Laws.

Doforred tax = recognited on timing differonces being the diferénce botwesr taxable incomes and accounting
ineame that orfginate in one perod and are capabile of reversal In ane or more subisequent periods. Defeired tax
nasaets are recognized oniy #f there s reasonable / virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable mecome will be
availzhile against which such deterred tax assats will be raallzad. Such assels are reviewsd as at pach Balance Sheat
date lo reassess the rellability there ol

Tux credit is recognised In respect of Minimuwm Allernate Tax (MAT) ds per the provisions ol section 115JAA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 based on the convincing evidence that the Company will pay notmal Income-tax within statutory
time trama and is reviewed at each Balance Shaeet date.

1.11 IMPAIRMENT

Impairment of Assets s recognized when there 15 an Indication of impalrment, On such Indication the recoverable
amount of theasssts is estimated and ifsuch estimation is (ess than carmying amount, the carmying amount is reduced
to its recoverable amount.

1.12 PROVISIONS

A provision It recognised when the campany has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an
outtiow of resources will be required to settie the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Pravision are not discounted to presant value and are determined based on best estimate required o satile the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current hast estimares,

1.13 CONTINGENCIES AND EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Events, which are material, occuring after the date of Balance Sheet are considered up to the date of Approval of
Accournis.

1.14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent Liabllitles, which are considered significant and material by the company, not provided tar in the books of
accounls and are discloged by way of notes to accounts,

1.15 PROPOSED DIVIDEND
Propoased dividend Including tax thereon is which is subject to approval of Shareholders in Annual General Meating ks
shown under notes to accounts.




"‘mﬂ Mag,

[
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21STMARCH 2024
NOTE : 2 SHARE CAPITAL
{a) Details of share copital
As ot Au ot
PARTICULARS 31t March, 2024 319 Maorgh, 2023
|Bs. In Lacs) {Hs. In Lacs)
Authonzed Coaplital
24,00,000 (P.Y.- 24,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ eaon 240,00 240,00
240.00 Z40.00
|ssued, Subseribesd & Paid Up Caplial
418465 (P.Y. - 4,18, 466) Equily Shares of Rs. 10/-aach, &1.85 41.85
41.85 4185
{ b} Reconclllation of number of shares sutstanding
As at Asal
PARTICULARS 3151 March, 2024 31t March, 2023
|Rs. In Lics) (R%. In Lacs)
Number of shares at the baginning (Nos.) 4,18 458 4,158,466
Add; Snare msued during the yeor (Nes.) -
Humber of dhnres ot the closing (Nos.) 4,18 4008 4,108,468
{c) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As al 31.03.2024 A ol 33002023
PARTICULARS Mo, of N, of !
Shares Y hpe Shares = ARD
Sl Shires Kumal Bangur a6 8Es 11.23% 456, B85 L1.23%:
S, Shashi Banue 41,078 S.A7H 41,0758 9 82
Shroo Satyanarayan iInvestmenis Co. Limited 24,147 B, 0%, 34, 147 W10
Veor Enterprised Limited 32,294 7.72% 32,294 7N
Life Insurance Corporation of India 26,042 6.22% 75,042 (27w
Coweoodty Bulldars Py Lid. 28,473 4.08% 25,473 .08
The Diarrand Company Lititad 24,221 5.70% 24,221 6.79%
Vilest Coast Fapot Mills Lid 20,043 5.00% 20,8943 5.00%:
Mate - 208000 nipe. of shires (5, A0S (s halg held by bndeateor Eduralion and Beatec i Fuss Authoiy
{ &) Promoters sharsholding
As ot 31.03.2024 Aa ot 3103 2023 iy Chsngie
MAME OF THE PROMOTER Mo. of No.of of Tertal
Shares WAge Sharos " Age Ehares
Shut, Shrea Kuman Bangur A6, 286 11.23% A6 865 11 23%
Smit, Shoashl Bai g 41,078 BB a1.07% O (L
Shit, Virendraa Bangur 16,766 4.00%% 16,7565 a4 o0 .
Shri. Sidrabh Ban g 18,311 A.590% 16311 3. 905 -
Mo Shirivaisa Bangu a2 0.02% 84 02% £
Smi. Boort Bangu) 93 0.02%: 83 CL02%E -
Shree Satyanarayan |ivwestments Co. Litd 34,147 8.16% 34,147 0.16%
Vs Enterprises Limited A2.204 T.72% Az.294 7.72% -
West Coast Papal Mills Lid. 20,043 5.00% 20949 5.00% =




NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024
Promoter's sharsholding continued,,

EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

Az ot 31.03.2024 As ar31.03.2023 Ut Chiange
NAME OF THE PROMOTER Mo. af o Age No.of "Ag of Total
Shares Shares Shares
The Diamond Company L 24,221 5.79% 24221 5.79% -
Union Campany Lid, 16,568 3.72% 15,668 3700
AkH [l T PLyntatians And Agio Ind, L, 14,784 1.53% 14,784 3.50H
The Intdra Campany Lid* 16,190 18T 16.190 387 :
Gold Mohais Investment Co. Lt B,381 2.01% B.a7e 2,006 0.003%
Crtafr Wiy Pye. Led, 5,308 1.29%, 5396 1.29%
Tatil 2,003 248 70,08 2,893,233 7007w 0.004%

“Amiritvilia Investments Limited and Mothola Caompany Lid. got marged (nto Tha Indra Chmpaty LUd. and &5 suth thelr hotlding
Wi lso transfarred,

(e} There is increase in promoter’s sharcholding as at 31.03.2024 by 0.004% In compatison lo 31.03.2023

{1} There Is no Holding and / ar Ultimiate Holding Company.

(g} Terms and Rights stiached to Equity Shares:

The Company has ane class of equity shares haying & par value of A 10/ per share. Each holder of equity share s entitled to
one yote per share held and is entitted to dividend proposaed by the Board of Directors subject to appraval of the shareholdars in
the Annual General Meating. In the event of iguidation, the eguity shareholders are shgible to recene the remaEning assats of the
Company, anel distrution of all prefemantisl amount, |0 propo jon to e shars helding

(h] The company has not lssued Equity ahares without consideration recoelved in cash in the Immediately preceding five
financinl years,

NOTE : 3 RESERVE & SURPLUS
As at Asan
PARTICULARS 31%1 March, 2024 31st Margh, 2023
|R4. In Lacs) (Rs. InLacs)
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance ) 154.256 ) 164,25
Closipg Balance 184.25 164,25
Securities Premium Account
Opaning Balnnce A68.60 I55.80
Clos|ng Balance 358,860 a54 .60
Ganaral Resarve
Cpening batance 1.3869.48 1.355.48
Closaing Balance 1,389.48 1,359.48
Rehabiiitation and Development Resarve
Qpaning Balancs 0.85 095
Clasirsg Balance 0.95 0,85
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Frofht/ [Loss) brough Torwised frorm pravidus yadal 1.268.51 1,388.27
Leas: Prior period adjustment of Taxes - a3
Addd: Profit / [Laag) for tho peciod [58.38) {123.53)
Clgsing Balonce 1,211.15 1,269.51
3,124.44 3,182 .80
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ISTMARCH 2024
HOTE : 4 LONG TERM BORRODWINGS
Asat Asal
PARTICULARS st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
[Re. InLncs) {Re In Locs)
Addlif ond Working Capital Temm Loan (AWETL) with BOB Alde No _—
FATEOGDUDOD5EE ) :
Termp and Ganditiona: _
PurposeMrovitding Additienal Wedk| g Gapltal Tarm Laan  wew of
Amaoumnt sanarionad: 40 Lakhs
Repayable: 36 egual Installments wae.l luly 2021 and last
installonent due - 30,.06.2024
Ratn of intoreat: BRLLR +1,00%
Socurity: Booured by oxclugsive chamgo by ey of hypoThooation of
stock present and fumre and edguitalide mortagage of d@nitate of
rubibod plantlioeds s thie extoil of 782048 Al iy
. 3.33
NOTE : 58 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / [ASSETYS)
An ax Asan
PARTICULARS A1st March, 2024 3st Mareh, 2023
{Rs. In Lacs) {Hs In Lacs)
On account of thiming difference
Opening Balahce aA5.92 62.28
Charge / (Releass) (9.21) 126.37)
Closing Balance 24070 an5 oz
NOTE : 6 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at _ AR at
PARTICULARS 31t March, 2024 311 March, 2023
[Ra. InLacs) [Ra. 1h L)
Cautlon Depanlts - Cthers 40,10 40.00
Praterence Shprelinlders 0.35% 0.35
e Lonig Tecn Linhillbes 2.17 217
42.61 4251
NOTE: 7 OTHER LONG TERM™ PROVISION
As As al
PARTICULARS 315t March, 2024 Jlst Mreh, 2023
{As. In Lacs) {Ae I Lacs)
Pravision fer Gratulty 17235 178,33
Provision lor Leae Salany 34.32 33.60
206.67 211.93




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

NOTE : 8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Asat Asat
PAATICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st Maech, 2023
{As. In Lacs) [R5, In Lacs)
A.SECURED
Cash Credit From Bank of Buroda, Coonoor 140.16 120,11
{Cash credit limit of As.2 Crores sanctioned by BOB, Coonoor) secured by
hypothecation of raw matsrisls, stock in process, finlshed goods, stores &
spares parts , hypothecation of book debts in respect of Tea dlvzion and
gquitable mortgage of land and factory bulding located m Denad villagle,
Kadenamalal village and In Kengaral village, Kil Kotagit Post, iypothecation
of existing and proposed plant & machineries st ROl of BALLA + SP+0.40%
Cash Credit From Bank of Baroda, Calicut 166.54 348.02

(Cash credit imit of As.4.50 Crores sanctioned by BOB, Calicut. secured by
Fublar standing crop ineluding stock in process stock 51 estale, finished
goods, book debits and equitable mortgage of the title deeds of estate
property of 818.18 acres)

Bank Ovemraft Account fromy Bank of Baroda, Coonoor Afc No.
10480400000828 [Limit sahctioned Rs 5 Lakhs s=cured against Fxed 4.95 415
Deposit ot a rote of 1% over the FOR rate of 4.90%)

Additional Warking Capitat Term Loan [AWCTL) with BOE- Installmeant duea

within ohe year 3
31497 #85.61
B) UNSECURED
Inter Carporate Deposits
(nsecured, repayable on demand @ 7.50% p.a (P.Y. 8% p.a.) 65.00 65.00
I7a.97 55D0.61
NOTE: 9 TRADE PAYABLE
As at As al
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(R=. In Lacs) (AL In Lacs)
For Goods & Services
Total Outstanding du s of mi merpdis o small anterprides (Rat
_ nding duks of micro emerpises ang 5 eritarprises (Ratey 1573 16.72
Mate No. 34)
L i c h T ndd |
Total Dt_.rmnmt ni dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and smal e S95.08
SreIprises
393,84 Z56.70

9
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

Ageing of Trade Payablas
Ageing of Trode Payabile a4 o1 31.03.2024 - [Rs. InLnea )
: autstanding for lellewing periods from due date ol payments [2023-24)
PARTICULARS
NotyetDue |  <1¥r. 12¥s, | 23¥ms. | >3Y¥s. | Total
MSME 14530 | [ I 7 . . 1518
Others Aq4.73 S1.481 1.06 Im.11
Dispamer MSME ' 0.54 0.54
Desputed Orhers . - . -
Total | 35985 | 3262 1.65] | | 484 84
Ageing of Trade Payable as a1 31.03.2023 - [As. |n Lacs |
Qutstanding for following periods trom due date of ents |2022-23)
PARTICULARS
NotyotDue | <1¥r 1:2¥m, | 23¥m >3¥ms. | Total
MSME 13.07 | am | 16.72
Othars 22753 11.85 0.17 035 0.38 23998
[Hsputad MSME - - -
Disiprutired Othisrs ‘ | . g F E _ .
Total 240,56 16.35 0.17 0.25 b.38 258,70
NOTE : 10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As atl Ax'm
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 Mat March, 2023
{As, In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs)
Employes Benallt Poynable 10427 BD. 7B
Providend Fund Payabie 27.17 24.26
Tax Deductod at Soures Payabily B.12 561
GST Paynble 12.41 0.61
Interest Payable 4.39 5.00
Unclaimed Dividend D.88 0.B8
[Liatsil ity towlrds lnwastor Prataction Fund u/s 125 of tho Coripanies Act, 2013 I8 Nilj
Unclaimed Fractional Shares 1.33 1.33
Advances from Customors 83.78 51.60
Caution Deposits - Refundably within one yoar 65.26 54,46
Deposit on Account of Compensation (Refer Note No. 32) 99.37 gu.37
Creditor for Capltal Goods 1.85 13.560
Llabilities tor Expenses 90.82 124 96
a487.62 462.53
NOTE - 11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
A=z at As Bl
PARTICULARS dist March, 2024 J1st March, 2023
{Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs)
Provision for Gratuity 1o Staff & et 76522 55.58
Provision for Bonus 101.30 104.50
Provision for Lenw Salary 240 22.28
200.83 184.33

A4
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NOTES ANNEXED TGO AND FORMING PAAT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024
HOTE : 17 INVENTORIES
An ot s at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 3181 Mareh, 2023
{Hs In Lacs) (Ha. In Lacy)
Valoed at Cont or NRV swhichever is lowesr
Rubber Rock 204.86 215,85
Tes Inventory 118.20 154.34
Cofee liwentory 43.54 5732
Minor Produce Iventony 1.25 -
Purchese Tea Stock 37,55 2184
Walued ol Wolghted Avil Cost
Ranwy M iitmiols - Unprocessed Rubbar &850 441
Cendral Stbres & Spate Narts 108,05 78.68
Tools & Equipments 7.08 T4
538.B9 40328
NOTE : 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES
A at Ad oL
PARTICULARS A=t Murch, 26324 Fint Moreh, 7023
{Rs. I Lacs) {Rs, In Lacs)
Trage Recaivables - Unsecurad consiizrad good 250.50 12459
Trade Apcalvibles . Considivred Doutitful - 1.13
Less: Provision for douttiul oebls - - [3.13) -
250.50 124,59
ﬂmﬁﬁrm Ascelables - (An. In Lacs)
FARTICLILARS A
hlast it D e & mwmihs o mypdles - 1Y, 1-2¥rs, 2-3%rs, >0 yuaey Totad
Undbsputed Trade Reesivables zEs 1540 B.25 475 014 oar 5T
D esnilidpad posd
Y wis by Maes signl e ant |
WCiTahE {Y STl 1Bk |
W) et Fmpaned
Dusputed Trade Receivaliles
i ol beres) - -
] b e sigpni e vk
inereans W erodit ok
W) T Enpanaal
Total | 11283 12340 .25 4.75 0.19 0,07 250.50
PAATICULARS =
Nyt Due Al nthn [Amnthes 1Y 12 Fin. #3%m, 2 Tatal
Unadinputed Trado Receivabios I TS, B, [k L4a 047 .00 174
I sonuicered good
B it e s et
e rwane e rndi P
) chedit vk el - - ]
Dringuted Trdde Receiabies |
T o eresl e | . - .
B wirech tisve spid i ara
W e e A anid
) credit npaiied .
Tatal I 7508 Al 54 14a 017 o.08 124 88




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

NOTE: 18 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

As ot As at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{Rs, In Lacs) (R In Lags)
Balance with Banks
« I Ciatrent and Owecardail Adcounts 4.38 2.25
« In Fimed Deposins B.B2 T0.401
Cheques-in-Hand s 1
Cash-in-Hand [As ceifled by managemant) 2.38 1.36
15.57 74.01
NOTE: 20 OTHER BANK BALANCES
As ot &5 at
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 A1st March, 2023
(Rs. In Laca) {Rs. I Lacs)
Dividend Agcounts 0.88 0.88
Fractional Shares Account 1.34 1.34
Elgctranic Cash Ledgar with GST Dapartment 2.95 A.53
517 5B.75
MNOTE :21 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Asat Asat
PARTICULARS J1st March, 2024 31st March. 2023
{Rs. In Lacs) {As. In Lacs)
(Unsecurad and considered good by management)
Agvance 1o Suppliers & Olhers 12.63 13.76
Acvances to Employess 14.46 6.01
27.08 18,77
NOTE: 22 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As ot Ay at
PARTICULARS d1st March, 2024 318t Mareh, 2023
{Rs. In Lacs) (R InLags)
(Unsecured and considersd good by managemant)
Prapald Expansos a7.88 Z7.686
Othe Curmrent Assets 21.27 25.36
Intarest Acoured 51.29 -
100.28 108,11
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

NOTE : 23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

For the year ended

For the yesr anoio

PARTICULARS 3ist March 2024 Jist March 2023
{As.in Lacs) [As.n Lacs)
Sales of Products
Sule ol Rublbigy 6,326.02 A.4976.25
Lews : Cash Tscount on Sales - 8.326.02 0.98 3.978.27
Salo ot Tea
- Shilo of Ten 2,783.18 2,181.63
- Trading Cpesations InTea 404.36 J7e.86
- Bals of Taz'Wasta 66.02 3,253.54 §2.74 281323
Sole of Coffes 7119 41,88
Sale of Minor Produce 2.93 asr
8.653.77 6.634.25
Other Operating Income:
Intarcrapping Licence feas 4800 37.54
Slalghtior BUbbar 117.81 95.07
Sale of Traws 222.72 214.44
Surdry Receipls 14.81 2279
403.52 365,84
10,057.28 7,004,009
NOTE : 24 OTHER INCOME
For the year endad Farthe yeat atided
PARTICULARS 31wt March 2024 S1st March 2023
{Rs.in Lacs) {Rs.im Lacs)
Interest
- Intarest or Loan 12.00 12.00
- Infeeest an Debantures 10.19 7.50
« INtiesr orl Incomie Tax tafund 1.45 2.3
- Inteeest on Flaeg Deposit 0,72 a.61
- IntéEnest or DTher Daposits 1681 2598 1.20 2E.60
Profit f [Lo=s) on Sale of Assars 2.04 B a2
Profi £ (Loss) an Sale of Investmunts i8.07 46,68
Irspranoe Sl neoo had 147 d.2h
Dividend recelved on Investmants 5336 33,09
Other Non Qparating lncoms 142 4.56
Sunidry balances weltten back 1.03 0.09
121.35 123.58

& —




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

NOTE : 25 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

For the year ended For the yaar endisd
PARTICULARS 3ist Mmch 2024 st Ml 2023
{Rs.in Lacs) {Rs.n Lags)
Dpeaing stock ;
- Unprecessed Rubber 4.41 B3.86
- Grean Lagl - -
Atld - Purchase :
- Unprotossad Auitibar 4,881.17 2.744.04
- Greon Leal B73.04 533.356
Less; Cloging Steck:
- Unprocessad Rubbs 6.56 4.41
- Grean Leat C 3
5,752.08 3 35686
MOTE : 26 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
For the yaar ended Far the year anaded
PARTIGCULARS J1st March 2024 J1st March 2023
[Rs.in Lacs) (As.in Lacos)
Opening Stock 44345 620,02
Closing Stock #16.40 449 45
({Incraase) / Dacrease in Ivventories 33.08 170.56
NOTE ;: 27 EMPLOYEMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March 2024 319 Maich 2023
{Rs.in Lacs) (As.in Lacs)
Solaries, Wages and Bonus 1.803.11 142285
Comribution to Provicant and Pension Funo 142.84 12176
Contribution 1o Gratuly Fund 7822 65.58
Workmen and Staff Wellare Expennas 67.27 34,04
1.688.45 1.664.21
NOTE : 28 FINANCIAL COST
For the yoar ended For the year endod
PARTICULARS 3ist March 2024 31st March 2023
(Rain Lacs) {As.in Lacs)
Interest on Borrowing
{i} ToBank #40.62 42,16
fil} To Unsecured Bomowings 4.88 E66
Othem
{i) Bank CThanjes 2.76 b.24
{il] Orhers 034 0.85
4B.80 £a.8a
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024
MOTE : 20 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 3ist Mrch 2024 3181 March 2023
{Rs.in Lacs) (As.in Lacs)
Deprecistion an Property, Plant and Equipments 18290 165.12
Amattization on intangible Assats . 0.13
182.90 165.24
NOTE : 30 MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended For the year endued
PARTICULARS Jist Murch 2024 318 March 2023
(Rs.in Lacs) {As in Lags)
Manufsctiring Exps - Bougnt Leat, Bought Rubber ale. 1,036.48 B59.27
Calfog Curing Chirgss 1.25 0.78
Conslumable Stores & Spares parts 181.86 21791
Power & Frel 281.06 243756
Rent, Rates and Taxes 3251 3331
Provident Fund EDLL & Administartive Charges 1134 2,90
Machinery Repalrs & Malntenance 30.86 25.57
Bullding Repairs & Maintanance 104,64 a91.80
Insurances charges 23.88 2832
Travelling Expensas 2530 17.70
Director Sitting Fees 0.50 043
Legal & Professional fees .31 12.23
Payment 1o Auditors
- Bratory Audit Feas 2,60 2.80
= Tam Audit Feed 0.40 0.40
« In other capagity & relmbursemant 0.10 310 017 a.17
Receiving Forwarding & Toansport Changes 84.83 ThH.14
Solling & Distribution Expenses 46.38 35.18
fad Debts wintion off 1.00 0.61
Fixed Assets Discarded 0.13 314
Sotas Tox of earlisr years writeEn off . 7.87
Otfice Expanhses 28 44 27.68
OtHer ExXporites 61.00 44.74
1,948.85 1,541.16




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 335T MARCH 2024

NOTE : 31 OWNERSHIP OF THIRUMBADI DIVISION

Honoratile Suprems Court has gheen verdict i tavour of the compay for inased old land of Thinimbad! Dhaklon, The same amosinting
to Rs. 27,5454 hos been aggregated with Freshold land which is In the process of transfer in the name of the company. The Land
Titbonal Fowever bad not granted Puorchase Ceartificate in respect of abowe vide its Grder dated 28th fune, 2018 The Company had
Thed an apponl before Appellats Authonty, Kenngr and the Appefiate Authonity vide ts Crdar datord 240h lanonry, 2023 nas g2 anide
the Ordel passed by the Lana Tride nat and remanded the mattor oack 1o Land Tribunal.

NOTE: 32 COMPENSATION FROM POWER GRID CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD

The Company had tiled Gl Revision Pelition (CAP) No. 678/2014 bufore the Mon, MHigh Court of Ketaln seeking enhanced
compensation for the Land used for drawing the 400 KVA Electric transmissian line ly Mis. Pawanpid Corparation of India Limited
agalnst the attder of District Court, The High Coun inits arder directad the District Countoe reconsidoer the patitlon. The District Court
awarcked Rs. 145,15 Locs oo companaation with 12% intorest vide Ordar OF Mo, 1487127 dated 26, 12,2018, In Une sith e order, Mis.
Power Grid Corporation of Indin Lid had deposited TDS of As 5.559 Lacs on interest portion of Ay, 53590 Lacy on the compensation
amount as mentiomed above durmg Financial year 20 18-20 which was shown under “Extracrdinary ltem™ in Statemant of Profit & Loss
i OTher Corrent nnsets Recehabils.

Subsequentty, Mo Fower Onid Corgroeation af inda Ltd hod fMed an apeeal (0 the Hon, High Cowrt Kernka chafloniiing the above onder
of Distric! Court and as gor Hho rection depasftod fu, 896,69 Lacy in the couwrt. The Compieny o por the Court Qrdar datod 238 [y,
2020 wos allowsd D witharaw the amount deposited by Mis. Powarnind Corporation of India L1d. slong with the int2rest acorugd and
necardingly the company Mo recalved Ry 9837 Lacw. The anld dmount will hove 1o be fefunded @ Hisn'tie High Court decides the
appoal Nlisd by Mis Powergiid Corporation of [ndia Lic.in thei fevoul. Consldeiing this the amolnt of R5.99.37 Locs medived s shown
8 * Depost on account of Compenastion” undar "Othar Current Liabilitjes®,

NOTE : 33 CONTINGENT LIABILITY NOT PROVIDED FOR

Asat As a1
PARTICULARS JistMarch, 2024  31atMarch, 2023
(R=. In Lacs) [Ra, Iny Loes)
Contingant Liabillty
Uncatled Lability on paily paid shards ol Shres Satyvanasayan Ingestmeits Co, Lid. 1440 14.40
O ancount of rmilnimm wi for the year 2008-08 10 2010 -11
related to Kilkotagtin Estate Iﬁp 43 $3,43
Centvtal Itcoirs Tad Demand (Undsr Agpanl) 227.80 227.80
Capltal Commitment 24.15 34.74
IntsrEst Hessivatie from Powst Grid Corporation of Indla Lid. (Refed NOTE No. 32) 55.90 55 60
410.68 421 27

a) *Minimuit Wages case pending before the Depuly Commissionst of Labour, Coonoor - flizd by Inspector of Plantation against
Menibei Estates under NPA (o include the Terfain Allowance compohent for the pupode of Minimum Wages undir eaflien woie
sotlaront,

b Tha Deputy Commissianer Kazhikode had awardad tha ortler in vour of o worker unter the Paymemt of Gratuity Act stating his
sligibility tor Gratuty for the lemparary pefiod. in response to the onger the company has fitad an appeal befors the Appeliats
Authonty.

o) That Adsesaing officar In the assessmnnt for AY 20015-16 ahd AY 2017-18 Had mado certaln additinns In the metasn of Income Nled by
the company. The demand of Income tax on account of (he sdditinns In the iIncome were atd|usted from the brought fonserd loss=s
complotely for AY 201516 and tor AY 2017-18 the tax asuessed was As. 138 Lacs atter adjustemant of carmed forered of losses, The
soimpay hat disputod the addtions ant ed appeal with Comminlonet Income Tas [Appoals), Koihikede,
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

NOTE : 34 MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM SIZE ENTERPRISES.

As |t Axogn
PARTICULARS 348t March. 2024 31t March. 2023
[Rs. In Lacs) |As. In Lacs)
a. the prncipal amount and the interest due thsrean remaining unpakd o any 15.732 18.722
supplist o o the end of aach nccodhting yeor:
. tho amheunt of Intarest paldd try The buyet iIn terms of section 18 of the Migia, 0,100 0.020
Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2006, along with the amounts
of the payment made o the suppler eyond (he apponted day domng eech
necoumting yum
c. tho amount of intedest due andl payable fol the perlod of deliy In malkifg -
payment but without adaipg the intemst specified under the Micro, Small and
Mad)ign Enterpeiyes Devielopment Act, 2008,
d, the amouiit of intemst accrued and rernalning unpala at the end of eadh 0.004 0100

aconimting yese

e the amoum of Nnber interest tamaitiing due and payalde sven jn the - a
succaed|ng years, until such date when the |nterest dues s above are actually

paid o e small enteiprise, (o0 the purpose of dissiovance as a deductible

expandiiure undéer sectian 23

NOTE: 35 LEASE RENT

The Compatiy's (ease agresmants (& Lesses) in mspect of lease lor Office & Rasigenthd accummadation, which are o pariodic
renowd bauls and the expenditiure ncured on account of et dirmg the yearc and rocognined in the Statement of Profit & Loss
amounts to As. 28.31 Laes (P.Y - As, 25,85 Lacs)

NOTE : 36 IMPORTED & INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED

PARTICULARS 2023-24 202223
{Rs. In Lacs) % Age {Ry. In L) 5 Age
Stores ant Spare pans
= Iporting . -
- indiganous 101.86 1v0.00 217.91 100,00
181.66 100.00 21791 100,00

NOTE: 37 ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE

The Compaity has mijioted 1o o new software tor malntenance of its Books of Accouiits relating o geneinl business tunctions w.ei
151 Aprll 2023 and i ln the process of astablishing necessmy contiols redating to Audjt Trall (Edis Logd facility m compliance to proviso
1o Ride 3(1) of the Companles (Accounts) Hles, 2014,

MNOTE ; 38 DISCLOSURE U/S 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013
Thiet Looan mnd infenest gggregating o 107,02 Lecy (PY. RS 10102 Locs) 6 rsgdyutile on disrmmshd

A ot During the Yaar As ot
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2023 Addnibne Delatlons . 31st March, 2024
(A I Locs) (RS 16 Loes)  (Rs Db Lives) {Ra. InLnes)
Lonns & Inteiest Fundad 101.02 12.00 12.00 101.02
Mo Cuirent |nvestements Bas.08 114 54 207.81 574.61

786,10 12904 21851 675.5%

]




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

NOTE: 38 DISCLOSURE AS PER AS - 15 (Revised) ‘Employee Benelita’ for the yeor ended March 31, 2024:

The disclosures reguires Unoer Accounting Standar 15 "Employes Banefita” notifed in thie Comparies (Accounting Standams) Aules
2006, are given below;

Defined Contribution Plan
Contrioution to Defined contribution plan, recognised are charged off for the year am as unden

2023-24 2022-23
PARTICULARS
(R, In Locs) (Hs. In Lacs)
Employer's Contributlen to Prowdent Fund 142.84 121.76
Defined Benefit Plan

The emplpyoes's Goagtuity Fund Schome = a defined benofit plan. The actumial has used The Frojectod Unjt Crodit Method (PUGC) 1o
asgess the Plon's Nabilivies inoloding those rolstod to death- in - strico anc incinpacity beoofits.

Reconcllistion of opening and closing balances of Defined Banefit Obligation

As at As m

PARTICULARS a4t March, 2024 3140 Mirch, 2023

(Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. InLncs)
Dretined Benafit Obligation af the bagmning of the yaar 780,84 788.03
Current Servlce Cost a5.01 3508
Interest Coat 57.34 65,86
Banelits pakd [72.06) (98,84}
Actunnil { Gain ) Moss 1.01 0.07]
Defined Benatit abligation ai the year end 834.14 780 84
Reconcilistion aof opoaing and closing balances of falr value of plin assets
Faalr waliie of plan assats of the beginning of the year 780,94 708,03
Expetctiod] moturm ol plan assets 40.04 3620
Emiployar contrbtitean 5.22 53.56
Benatits paid {72.086) (68.64)
Actuanal Gain / (Loss) - -
Fali vislue of pilan assels ot year end 83814 T4p o4
Actupl Roturn on Plan Assets
Expocted return of plan aasets 40.04 36.20
Actunrial Gain  (Loss) on plan assels -
Actual retum on Plan assats 40.04 35.20
Reconcilistion of Falr Value of assels and obligations
Falr value of Plan assels as at 315t March E34.14 750,94
Present valus of obllgations as at 3188 March 834.14 T40.94

Ampunt recognised in Balhnoes Shewt Nil MA

5
Tad
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

_ As at As o

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 21 March, 2023
(As. In Laca) (fis. inLoca)

Exponans rocognized durfng the yoar | Lindar the haod Emiployvemant Benolit Expaensin |
Curment Sendice Cost 36,91 35.86
imterest Cost 57.34 55.88
Expected retisn on plin assets {40.04) (35.20)
Actiianal (Gain) £ |_oss 2101 (0.07]
Mer Com 7622 55.58
Investment Detalls {In%age) {im Ssaga)
Gavetrirvsnt of Indla Securibies -
Stnie Gowe hmen] Sscurnties -
Othors 100.00 100.00
Tatal 100.00 104000
Actuarial Assumptiens

Miortality Tabbe [ L1.C.)

Discount Aate [ par annum)

Expocted mte of retum on plan asspts [ per annum|
Attrltion Rata

Rate of Escalation In Salany{ perannumj

Standard LIC (1994-04] Ultimate

7.25%
7.01%
1.00%
3.00%

2.258
6.74%
1.00%
3.00%

The ostirmates af fate of escatution in siiory contioerdd in pelbansl waluation. takes Into account iInfllation, senlodly, promation bnd
orhin relevant tactors includitg aupply and domand l0'tha gmployment markst. The above information |s caritisd by the scraany.

NOTE : 40 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

PARTICULARS 2023-24 2022-23
(A=, In Lacs) (AL In Laos)
Emrrviregn In Foreign Curmricy -
Oihers 5.59
NOTE: 41 SEGMENT REPORTING
PARTICULARS 2033-2074 2022-23
(Rs, In Locs) (Hs. In Locs)
SEGMENT REVENUE - Net Sale/incaime from each seginoen)
i) Ants Divisian 6.703.35 434327
B) Tiea Djvislon 335394 2.B80.82
10,057.29 7.004. 09
SEGMENT RESULT - Protit /|Logss) bolore tax and interost froin abch segmient
&) Rubbar Divisian 65.28 {34.04)
Bl Tea Rivislon {187 .86) (148.18]
£} Investmant Incorme 99.61 A7.28
(48.84) {54.87)




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FUR THE YEAR ENDED J15T MARCH 2024
NOTE : 41 SEGMENT REFORTING Contd.,

PARTICULARS 2023-2034 2022-23
{Aa. In Lacs) [Ra. In Lics)
lersn:
{1} Interes 48 50 54.03
() Other unallocable Expenditurs net ot other income -
48.80 5483
Total Profit/{Loas ) Belore Tax |87.67) {149.00)
CAPTTAL EMPLOYED (Segment Assots- Segment Lipbilitles)
d) Rubibar Divikiar 1,868.17 2,009,083
b Tiza Lljvison 1,449 40 1.382.79
3,415.57 3.48F 42

Thie Company hi only on e geographicol segriint viz, Indid, Honoe, secondory ssgmentwise reporting is not applicible.

NOTE: 42 EARMINGS PER SHARE

PARTICULARS 202324 2023.23
PROFIT/{(LOSS) AFTER TAX

Before Extraomiinary and Exceptional tams As. in Lacs (58.36) {123.54)
Aftor Exbraordinary and Exceptional ltema Hi. In Lags (68.36) {123.54)
Dutintanding Equity Shares (Weligh ted Average) Nos, 4,108,466 4,18 468

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE AFTER TAX [FACE VALUE RS.10/-)
Before Extrooidinary ang Exceptional ifems R, {13.88) (26:52)
Attor Extrapridinary and Excoeptional itemn As {13.95) (28 .52)

NOTE: 43 TOTAL REMUNERATION TO WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR

PARTICULARS 2023-34 eh22-23
(As, in Lacs) (R, I Loics)
Sulnres 25.45 2281
Contibution to Prowvidant Fund 2.45 223
Bonus & Lesve Encashmen! 1.3 .02
L Ta/Medical reimbursement elc. 0.55 0.48
TOTAL* an.ra 27.55

* It awbavw armounl ooms aed include sy mttremant bopeftte
e remunievabion paed 1o Whobe Tiirse Dbrecior i wetfiin the coding of Schuddie-Vel the Companses Acr, 20013 and s luoed Uridter wmgfoyire coal.

MNole : 44 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
As toquired by Accounting Standard 18, Relsted Partles Disclasure” angd transactions with relited paities are as Iollows:

Group Companies: !G‘-\unmt Cabns Limioect

[She M.K.Patwar - Director & GEO
{Shl & K. Bangur - Chaleman
| St Shashi Bangur - Directos
Mon-Executive Dirsctors on the Boala {Shrl, Virordema Bingur - Director
iﬂid Kriatina ¥Kumaor Lahia - Cirector
Shel Sushit Kitrnar Dhandhants - Director

Mey Manapement Personnel.
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024
Tranzactions with Reloted Parties:

Mon-Emneutive Dilvclom
& Compan| Chagtand)
Nuturn of o B peoies & Kary Managoral Persos i
Trmmhctice 31-03-74 3140323 1-03-24 310323 -0324 31-03-23
{As_ |n Lacs) {As. in Laes] {Rs. In Lacs) {Rs_ln Lacs) {Rs. inLlacs) {Bs_in Lacs)
SRt Faesy (Pald) o Son
Pasenstive Dirnctars C .50 0.4 0.50
Ttarost aamod 1200 12,00
Ly @t ingmrest
outstanding . 101.02 10102
Remuneratan (Faidit
Key Managesial Parmon : g L
Pewie Puechise 4.18 2,80 I 4 (2.24) {3.44)

Mcaw ! Film e [RTEIES W Ty Ty I Tt s B B e T e O e aiesen
Felatod porties ave as rfantifog Byt compemy and feled godh By thr s Mg amounts perfirriig fo relatndd oo s s bedn proiaed fnr
&3 Fouhifil dehts oF weilins oft barck.

NOTE : 45 CODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY 2020

The Indian Parfiarment hos appiroved the Code of Socinl Seeutity, 2020 whith would Impest the contributions by tha cormipany
1owaids Pravident Fund and Geatuily. Thie Ministry of Labaur and Emplayrment had relessed draft nulés for the Cote on Sopizl Security,
2040 bn Novambis 13, 2020, and intiled sugpestions trom stakeholders which nre undsy considerathon by the Minlstry. The Company
will aesess the impact and ks evaluation ance the subject rulas ane netliled. The Compaty will g aggiropriate limpact in its financing
statements in the peried in which, the Code becomes effactive and the refated rules to determine the financial impact are publishod,

MNOTE : 46 RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS

2022-23
=24

Yarlance Resnons of varimce 0 aatoss of 25%
-l :

Primvarily on account of regaynet of
socured  Bomowims - during  the
currai fancial year 202524
Eamings for dett secvice Nns nesn
incroused on accoun of incieaia n
rewenun from operation fram prvious
fingngial year.

Ratio
Curmrant ratha {1 B i)

202324

L35

Dwtat-Egulng ratio|in timnsj 012 17 -20.17%

Dt service coverape rato (In tmes) a.rr 173064

Buslvess cotditiorm has  Deen
thgprenvet] b comitrest 1o laat Ly
lgaling 1o mmpemveTeEnt 0 ol
tirwi i Trom apatition.

10.90m| -

——

Retiirn oh amuity ratle (i %)

Ircraase (n gl purchases during
the current fnanclal wear in confrass
{0 pievious Nparsial year,

Trade payables tuinowes ratho (i times)

Ayrorage working capitisl has
decremssd by [al! for the cuired
firriciesl your Whorsss | evenue frim
opmrations has ncreesed

Pt eanpwbiil Borrsessnr rabies (e livse ) 10,94 {am e




EFLEOTAGHI AND THIRUMBADI MEANTATIONS LIMITED

NOTEE ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

NOTE : 46 RATIO AMALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS Conid,.

Ratw 202334 Xr2-23 Variance Reanons of varionca inexcess ol 26
Revemee has  jreroawed. majniy o0
accauM  of  incmased | businoss
M=t profit eatio (MW 0.5 L. 7% B! opefatians and  Improved  matet
crmil|lioes lededirg to beprowatent ih
INet Proft Ratin,
lrmpeovermant in mathet condliions for
Futitrer divisdon bas led Lo ine raams in

Retu i ) in % -0, 56 2 T 53N
R R = rubsties sefmmnt rovence st overndl
Improvement in RDCE
L= i wrestod  Yones 1
Aesimn on investmeant (im ¥} 639 A= . e froem od s
j mereasad,

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES [NOTE NO 47 TO 58)

NOTE: 47 The company WSS not entased |nto any tramsactian with the companies whioss name kas besn struck off.

NOTE: 48 The Compamy has not been declared wilful defautter by the Banks.

NOTE: 49 The Compahy hias fled charges as Wwell sy satisiaction of charpes in ROC within duoe dits,

NOTE: 50 The company has used borrowed funds for the purpose far which the monias were botrowed.

NOTE: 51 The Compabhy hag not imded or insied in Cryplo ciimeéncy during the year

NOTE: 52 The Company dofiot own iiny benami propeity. There are no proceedings inltiated against the company undpr this law 2= an
shatter of the transsction or a5 the transtent

NOTE: 53 Thig company has not surfendersd or dlsclosed any transaction previously tnmecondad income n tae assessment undsr the
Income TaxAct, 1861 as income during the yoar.

NOTE: 534 INVENTORY

The Carmpany has besn sahctioned Wolking Capital Facility by Bank o! Baroda in excess of A5 Crores pn the sscurity of cumrent
bisdits ond 18 submilting stiitemehts (o the Bank The details of curren! msets dsclosed in the statarmend and 7 or modifiod
statemenis as per the sanctionsd teims and conditions are in agresment with the books of pccounts excepls for the vinbpices as
stated below:

e=ate R lnLacs
e At el ioied an | At dislciannd
Wiorking Cagyrad
Ly er Slock wr pes Booknod | Variance
’ ’ Rr v
TR S5 Bl Sancloned ¢ d " Stararmeny Accouns Reaso fof Vanance
{ Fanid & Nan- )
L A & CAf
Fundg Based) ™ (8 -{A-8)
o - Tre hank has Desn
luner, 3023 58308 g 38 o037
B provedietd  with A
. Tl
30" Sapt, 2022 704 81 o .83 stuterment  on ihe
: Croe baslh of prorrsbons)
T = " fipides. Also, Steel of
¥ o )
51" Dec, 2020 855 40 BS8.77 13 it Al
conaldored i Skoek
1
SaTioes 404 i b o i, By atermirit

* Secuned primarity by way of hypothecation of stock and book dabis both present and Adure

NOTE: 55 o funds have been pdvanced or loaned of Inveoted (2ither from Dorrawed funcs or share peemium or any other sources ar
king of tunds) by tha Company to of [ any other persanfd) or entity(les), ncluding Tomeign entitles |“intermedianies”] with the
understanding. whether recordea in writing or othonwise, that thi intermediary shall lend ol invest In party kdentifled by ar on behalf of
the Campany (Ultimate Beneficiaies),

NOTE: 56 Tha Company his not mceied sy fund from any pony( o) [Funding Pamy) wi2h the understanding that the Cormpany st
whather, directly or Indirectly lend of invest In other persors o entites idennfisd by o on behal! of the Company ["Ultimate
Benoticinres™) or provide ony glarantes, secirity of the Lie oo behall of this LItimaets Beneficiaties.
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2024

NOTE: 57 Loans or atvances (repayable on deman d ar without specifying any tesms of, period af repayment) to specitied persons-

As atMarch 31, 2024 As =t March 21, 2023
TYPE OF RORROWER Amount o Amoun am
% of Total % of Tot

(Rw, In Lacs) e {fn. In Lace) -
Proamoioms b = -
Dnpeitom N = .
KIPs . ) ) .
Ralatied Paiiies 100,00 100,00% 100,00 100.00%
NOTE ; 58 DEFERRED TAX

The comparny i assessing meovirability of doforred tom asset &) each balonoe sheet date and consldening pragdence |s not providing
deferrad lox asset an brought lorward IGases.

NOTE : 53 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Thie campany dives not iedilin to make expendituie undor CSA actlvitkes, a5 company does oot (il the condilipns specifing under
smciinn 135 of the Acl

NOTE : 60 IMPAIRMENT IN ASSETS

The mgnagement has not noticed ony ingsioment in e Flioed Adsets aiter condgidenng lacts obitaiiied thiough intemal and extermal
stOliios.

NOTE : 81 RECONCILIATION OF ACCOUNTS

Sundry Debtors. Creditom and Loans and Advoances are syhjest 1o confirmation and reconcilintion and ae stated of the ook
balanges thereot.

NOTE : 62 REALISATION OF CURRENT ASSETS

In tha opinjen of the managaemmnt, the Currant Asnots, Loons & Advances will fetch the amaunt on stated, If reailsed i the odinaery
course of business

MOTE : 63 GROUPING OF ACCOUNTS
Presibus yoars' ligures hiss boen recliasaitidd, megfouped afd m atranged whoraver cansidoensd necossbny.

NOTE : 64 ROUNDING OFF
The figures in rupeds have been rounded of 1 1o e nearest Lacs.

Signatories fo Nofes 1 fo 64

For & On bohall of
DHANDHANIA & ASSOCIATES SHASHI BANGUR
Charterrd Accounianty Dimector
Firm Rogistration No,316052F (DIN 00053300)
SUDHANSU MAITY, FCA, Panner _
[Membrtship No: 057055 M.ICPATWARI VIRENDRAA BANGUR
Place : Kolkata _ Director & CEO Dirsctor
Bhated - 61h day of luns, 2024 (DN piLadanng) (LN Do23r04a)
COMPARATIVE RESULTS 2015-2024

Yeor EARNINGS DIVIDEND S

Ended | Pr uiﬂf[l.ﬁs} Before Tax and PFatcentage of H‘oﬁutl.n-_n} after provision Amsint Percantage on

Jist Extraurdinary |tems Eamligs on Equity | for Tax & Extraord inary ltems (Rs. In Lacs) Equity Capital

March (A=, In Lacs) Capltal (WAzo) {Rs. In Lacs) (AR

2015 1Z00.0F) 485 [1=%.50) . -

2016 (36,64} {B55) [390.87) -

2017 (138.76) (332 (127.91) :

2018 (62 83} {1a4) (129 85) - -

2015 6.70 18 430 A.d8 10.00

2020 1310, 75) {B14) |283.80) - -

2021 126495 a2 1,262.45 037 20.00

2022 (1207} (28 {18.14) - ;

2023 {148 80) {358) [123/53)

2024 (67 57) (181) (58_38)




RILKOTAGIRI AND THIRUMBADI PLANTATHONS LIMITED —

KILKOTAGIRI AND THIRUMBADI PLANTATIONS LIMITED
CIN: U01116KL1916PLCO17342
Thirumbadi Estate, Mukkam Post, Kezhikode - 673602, Kerala
Emall: treestate@kitrs. comy, Webisite! weatt kktre.com Phohe: 0495 - 2297151

ATTENDANCE SLIP
105" Annual General Meeting (13" Septembear 2024)

oPID Folio No
Clisnt 1D M. of Bhares
‘Nzme of Member

MName of Proxy

| hereby record my presence at the 105" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday, 13" September, 2024 at
11.30 AM. at Tnirumbad| Estate, Mukkam Post, Kozhikode - 673603, Kerala.

Mermber's / Proxy's Signature

e —— >

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[Piorsisant ta Saction 1056) of iz Companiss Acs. 2013 = huld 1930 of the Campanies (Managde =il and Adm|tistration) Rulss 20141
KILKOTAGIRI AND THIRUMBADI PLANTATIONS LIMITED
CIN: UD1116KL1819PLC017342
Thirumbadi Estate, Mukkam Post, Kezhikode - 673602, Kerala
Emall: treestatem kit com, Website: www kkiirc.com Phone: 0485 - 22487151

105™ Annual General Meeting (13™ September 2024)

Mame of the Memixer (3]

Haglslerad address

Email 1D :

Folio No. / Client Id - DEID:

e, Dt e mgmber (5] 00 simmsisssses PITETIRAp—— shares ol the above-named company. hereby appoinl

1] Namae:
Addrass;

E-mall ID:

Signature: or failing him

21 Name:
Afdross:

E maillD:

Slgnature: or falling him
3) Nams,

Address:

E-malliD:

Slgnature: or falling hirm

s ey o proxy o pftand and sote (on @ poll) far me £ us and on oy £ our ehall af the 105 Aan 0l Geperal Meeting of the Campany
1o be held on Friday the 13 day of September, 2024 2t 11.30 A M. at Thirumbadl Estate, Mukkam Post, Kozhikode - 673802, Kerala
ANt ot sey adjodimiment twreod inrespect of such eesolytons ss are indicated below:
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K
- SU Resolutions Optional*
No.
Ordinary Busifass For Agalnst

To receive, consider and adopt the awhited fimancial stataments nelading

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Swatemant of Profitand Loss.and Cash

Flow Statoment for e yeor omded as on that dato ond the Report of the
Dreciors and Audinors thepean

T appoeint a Diredlor in the place of SmL Shashi Bangur (CIN: 00053300) who
2 1
ratires by rotstion and Deing eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

2 To-dppoint a Director in the place of Snrl, Virendraa Bangur [CIN: 00237043) who
rehbrees by portat e and Desog efigitae, alfiees hirsell for e-apgomitent.,

Speclinl Busingss

To ratity the appointmont of Mr, P. Mohan Kumar, Cost Accountant (Memibership
4 | No. 18682) as Cost Auditor of the Campany Tor the financial vesr ending 31"
March 2025

5 To consider appalntment of Shri. Krishtia Kumar Lohia {DIN: 00830802}, as an
Independent Direclor ol ihe Campany

& To constder appointmeant of Shii. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania (DIN: 00181153, a5
an Independent Directot of the Company

100/ 00C
00000

I&tﬁ: 1 Re
SIgMeO IS ..o ey L Fi TR« — T 2024, iponay
igned this y Stamp
Signacurs ol Sharahobuesr el

S'-Hn"'t“'l“‘ﬂ' pl'ﬂl]f hﬁlﬂﬂ'fﬁ} SEAEEEAT R NER R NN AR AERER PSR FREE R RN DN N R S S 1R IR PR PR P R R I e 4

Notes:

1. This faerny of proxy In order tn be effactive should be duly completed and deposited at the Registened Offlce of the Company, not less
Lo 48 fguri belnie the commmenceiest of e Meeting,

2.Fo the resofutiona, sxplanhloty stalaimenis dnd Molos plitose feler to the Notice ol thie 105" Anndal Geneoal Mestitg.

3.0 s ool to put S0 in the appragtiste colurtt ageindt e Hescditings (ndicated in the B 1T you lkave the PO o “Agthinat”
cotumn-blank agnmst oy o all esclution, your prozy will e entitied o vore io e manner as e 0 she thinks approprioie

& Moose complome all dotalls including aotalls of memborns) in the abipve Hox betore sunmigsion
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